City Council Meeting
Agenda

JANUARY 25, 2022

6:00 p.m.

City of Turlock Yosemite Room

156 S. Broadway, Turlock, California

NOTICE: CITY HALL HAS BEEN CLOSED TO THE PUBLIC DUE TO AN
OUTBREAK OF THE COVID VIRUS.

TO AVOID SPREAD OF THE COVID VIRUS, THIS CITY COUNCIL MEETING WILL BE HELD IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953(e) AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF
THE RALPH M. BROWN ACT (CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54950, ET SEQ.), AS
WELL AS OTHER RELEVANT LAWS SUCH AS THE FEDERAL AMERICANS WITH
DISABILITIES ACT.

THIS MEETING WILL NOT BE PHYSICALLY OPEN TO THE PUBLIC.

TO PARTICIPATE IN OR WATCH THIS MEETING, YOU MUST DO SO USING ONE OF THE
FOLLOWING METHODS:

TO JOIN ON YOUR COMPUTER OR SMART PHONE/TABLET:

CLICK ON THIS MEETING LINK: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84924629186

OR

GO TO THE ZOOM WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join AND ENTER
WEBINAR ID NUMBER: 849 2462 9186

TO JOIN BY TELEPHONE*: DIAL 669-900-6833 AND ENTER
WEBINAR ID NUMBER: 849 2462 9186
*participant’s phone number will be public*

PLEASE NOTE THAT DUE TO TECHNICAL UPGRADES THAT ARE NOT COMPLETE, THIS
MEETING WILL NOT BE BROADCAST ON SPECTRUM CHANNEL 2.

Mayor
Amy Bublak
Interim City Manager
Council Members Sarah Tamey Eddy
Nicole Larson Rebecka Monez Interim City Clerk
Andrew Nosrati Pam Franco Kellie E. Weaver
Vice Mayor City Attorney

George A. Petrulakis




Council Agenda
1/25/22
Page 2

SPEAKER CARDS: To accommodate those wishing to address the Council and allow for staff follow-up, speaker cards are available
for any agendized topic or any other topic delivered under Public Comment. Please fill out and provide the Comment Card to the City
Clerk or Police Officer.

NOTICE REGARDING NON-ENGLISH SPEAKERS: The Turlock City Council meetings are conducted in English and translation to
other languages is not provided. Please make arrangements for an interpreter if necessary.

EQUAL ACCESS POLICY: If you have a disability which affects your access to public facilities or services, please contact the City
Clerk’s Office at (209) 668-5540. The City is committed to taking all reasonable measures to provide access to its facilities and
services. Please allow sufficient time for the City to process and respond to your request.

NOTICE: Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.3, any member of the public may directly address the City Council
on any item appearing on the agenda, including Consent Calendar and Public Hearing items, before or during the City Council’s
consideration of the item. Members of the public will be allowed five (5) minutes for comments.

AGENDA PACKETS: Prior to the City Council meeting, a complete Agenda Packet is available for review on the City’s website at
www.cityofturlock.org and in the City Clerk’s Office at 156 S. Broadway, Suite 230, Turlock, during normal business hours. Materials
related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after distribution of the Agenda Packet are also available for public
inspection in the City Clerk’s Office. Such documents may be available on the City’s website subject to staff’s ability to post the
documents before the meeting.

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. SALUTE TO THE FLAG

C. ROLL CALL

D. DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS
CLOSED SESSION:

The Closed Session item(s) for this meeting have been agendized and will be heard toward the
latter part of the meeting.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS POSTED OR AMENDED
This is the time for the City Council to remove items from the agenda or to change the order of the agenda. Matters
may be taken up out of order of the established agenda by a four-fifths vote of the City Council.

PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS, APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS,
PRESENTATIONS, AND BRIEFINGS: None

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.3(a), this is the time set aside for members of the public to
directly address the City Council on any item of interest to the public that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
City Council and to address the Council on any item on tonight's agenda, including Consent Calendar items. You will
be allowed five (5) minutes for your comments. If you wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda, you may be
asked to defer your remarks until the Council addresses the matter.

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.2(a)(3), no action or discussion may be undertaken on any
item not appearing on the posted agenda, except that the City Council, or its staff, may briefly respond to comments
or questions from members of the public, provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, or
direct staff to place the issue on a future agenda.

MOTION WAIVING READING OF ALL ORDINANCES ON THE AGENDA, EXCEPT BY TITLE



Council Agenda
1/25/22
Page 3

CONSENT CALENDAR:

Information concerning the consent items listed hereinbelow has been forwarded to each Councilmember prior to this
meeting for study. Unless the Mayor, a Councilmember or member of the audience has questions concerning the
Consent Calendar, the items are approved at one time by the Council. The action taken by the Council in approving
the consent items is set forth in the explanation of the individual items.

A.
B.

H.

Motion: Accepting Minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 11, 2022; Minutes of the
Special City Council Meeting of January 13, 2022

Resolution: Re-appropriating $170,000 to account number 413-51-539.51027_001
“Capital Clarifier #5 & MC Upgrade” from Fund 413 unallocated reserves to complete
funding for City Project No. 15-39C “Turlock Regional Water Quality Control Facility
Secondary Clarifier No. 5 and Denitrification”
Motion: Approving Contract Change Order No. 7 (Final) in the amount of $36,977.08
(Non-General Fund - Fund 413) with CW Roen Construction of Danville, California for
City Project No. 15-39C "Turlock Regional Water Quality Control Facility Secondary
Clarifier No. 5 and Denitrification” (upgrade and expansion of the wastewater treatment
plant) bringing the contract total to $19,703,163.29
Motion: Accepting Improvements and authorizing the City Engineer to file a Notice of
Completion for City Project No. 15-39C "Turlock Regional Water Quality Control Facility
Secondary Clarifier No. 5 and Denitrification”

Motion: Approving Contract Change Order No. 2 in the amount of $81,126.01 (Fund
420) with Clark Bros., Inc., of Fresno, California, for City Project No. 20-027 “City Wide
Chlorination" bringing the contract total to $4,374,881.51

Motion: Awarding a Retainer Agreement with GHD, Inc. of San Luis Obispo, California,
for City Project No. 21-030 “RFQ for Traffic Engineering Services” in an amount not to
exceed $150,000 annually or $600,000 in total

Resolution: Authorizing the submittal of applications for payment programs and related
authorizations and authorizing the City Manager or his/her designee to sign any and all
necessary documents

Motion: Authorizing Interim City Manager to execute service agreement with Townsend
Public Affairs for government relations and advocacy services

Resolution: Approving the updates to the job descriptions for Executive Assistant to the
City Manager/City Clerk and Executive Assistant to the City Manager/City Clerk Trainee;
and an amendment to the Salary Schedule of the existing Confidential Schedule of
Benefits and Policies adopted by Resolution No. 2021-228 dated November 9, 2021, to
include all approved Confidential Salaries

Resolution: Reaffirming the Director of Emergency Services Proclamation of Existence
of a Local Emergency in response to COVID-19

FINAL READINGS: None

PUBLIC HEARINGS: None

ACTION ITEMS:

A

Request to approve Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement between the City of Turlock
and Michael Baker International, Inc. (Walnut Creek, California office) for Professional
Services (City Contract No. 2022-45) in the amount of $1,408,105.35 (Fund 118
“Measure A”) for City Project No. 22-001 “Design of Projects for 2022 Construction for
Roads Program” in a form approved by the City Attorney AND approve a 10%
contingency in the amount of $140,000 for potential unanticipated changes in the scope
of services AND authorize staff to proceed with advertising, for construction, City Project
No. 22-001 “Design of Projects for 2022 Construction for Roads Program” upon
completion of bid documents AND appropriate $1,548,106 to account number 118-10-
115-800.43366_001 Roads Program “Design MBI’ to be funded from Fund 118
“‘Measure A” unassigned reserves to provide the necessary funding for City Project No.
22-001 “Design of Projects for 2022 Construction for Roads Program”. (Quintero)



Council Agenda
1/25/22
Page 4

Recommended Action:

Motion: Approving Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement between the City of Turlock and
Michael Baker International, Inc. (Walnut Creek, California office) for Professional
Services (City Contract No. 2022-45) in the amount of $1,408,105.35 (Fund 118
“Measure A”) for City Project No. 22-001 “Design of Projects for 2022 Construction for
Roads Program” in a form approved by the City Attorney AND approving a 10%
contingency in the amount of $140,000 for potential unanticipated changes in the scope
of services

Motion: Authorizing staff to proceed with advertising, for construction, City Project No.
22-001 “Design of Projects for 2022 Construction for Roads Program” upon completion
of bid documents

Resolution: Appropriating $1,548,106 to account number 118-10-115-800.43366_001
Roads Program “Design MBI” to be funded from Fund 118 “Measure A’ unassigned
reserves to provide the necessary funding for City Project No. 22-001 “Design of
Projects for 2022 Construction for Roads Program”

Request to approve Amendment No. 2 with Carollo Engineers of Walnut Creek,
California, in the amount of $799,475 (Fund 410), bringing the contract total to
$1,767,849, for design, engineering services during construction, construction
management services, and SCADA programming and integration services for City
Project No. 20-032 "Chemical System Upgrades Project at RWQCF" AND
appropriate $1,247,000 to account number 410-51-534.51342, “Chemical Equipment
Replacement” to be funded from Fund 410 — Water Quality Control (WQC) unallocated
reserves for engineering, construction management, and SCADA programming services
by Carollo Engineers for City Project No. 20-032 "Chemical System Upgrades Project at
RWQCF"

OR

Request to approve Amendment No. 2 with Carollo Engineers of Walnut Creek,
California, in the amount of $145,843 (Fund 410), bringing the contract total to
$1,114,247, for design, engineering services during construction, construction
management services, and SCADA programming and integration services for City
Project No. 20-032 "Chemical System Upgrades Project at RWQCF" AND appropriate
$593,000 to account number 410-51-534.51342, “Chemical Equipment Replacement” to
be funded from Fund 410 — Water Quality Control (WQC) unallocated reserves for
engineering, construction management, and SCADA programming services by Carollo
Engineers for City Project No. 20-032 "Chemical System Upgrades Project at RWQCF"
(Madden)

Recommended Action:

Option 1:

Motion: Approving Amendment No. 2 with Carollo Engineers of Walnut Creek, California,
in the amount of $799,475 (Fund 410), bringing the contract total to $1,767,849, for
design, engineering services during construction, construction management services,
and SCADA programming and integration services for City Project No. 20-032 "Chemical
System Upgrades Project at RWQCF"



Council Agenda
1/25/22
Page 5

Resolution: Appropriating $1,247,000 to account number 410-51-534.51342, “Chemical
Equipment Replacement” to be funded from Fund 410 — Water Quality Control (WQC)
unallocated reserves for engineering, construction management, and SCADA
programming services by Carollo Engineers for City Project No. 20-032 "Chemical
System Upgrades Project at RWQCF"

OR

Option 2:

Motion: Approving Amendment No. 2 with Carollo Engineers of Walnut Creek, California,
in the amount of $145,843 (Fund 410), bringing the contract total to $1,114,247, for
design, engineering services during construction, construction management services,
and SCADA programming and integration services for City Project No. 20-032 "Chemical
System Upgrades Project at RWQCF"

Resolution: Appropriating $593,000 to account number 410-51-534.51342, “Chemical
Equipment Replacement” to be funded from Fund 410 — Water Quality Control (WQC)
unallocated reserves for engineering, construction management, and SCADA
programming services by Carollo Engineers for City Project No. 20-032 "Chemical
System Upgrades Project at RWQCF"

Request to authorize Interim City Manager to execute an agreement in a form approved
by the City Attorney, with the City of Modesto to provide fire administrative support
services by a regional fire administration team by providing staff to fill the role and
responsibilities of Fire Chief for the City of Turlock AND appropriate $126,554.28 to
account number 110-10-109.43060 000 “Contract Services General’ from “Unrestricted
General Fund Reserve” to fund fire administrative services with the City of Modesto.
(Botto)

Recommended Action:

Motion: Authorize Interim City Manager to execute an agreement in a form approved by
the City Attorney, with the City of Modesto to provide fire administrative support services
by a regional fire administration team by providing staff to fill the role and responsibilities
of Fire Chief for the City of Turlock.

Resolution: Appropriating $126,554.28 to account number 110-10-109.43060_000
“Contract Services General” from “Unrestricted General Fund Reserve” to fund fire
administrative services with the City of Modesto

Request to reassign the lead entity of the City of Turlock/Stanislaus County HOME
Consortium to Stanislaus County and have Turlock remain as a member City OR
disband the City of Turlock/Stanislaus HOME Consortium OR apply as a single
Participating Jurisdiction OR Turlock continue as the Lead Entity for the City of
Turlock/Stanislaus HOME Consortium. (Ramos)



Council Agenda

10.

1/25/22
Page 6
Recommended Action:
Option #1:

Motion: Reassigning the lead entity of the City of Turlock/Stanislaus County HOME
Consortium to Stanislaus County and have Turlock remain as a member City

OR

Option #2:
Motion: Disbanding the City of Turlock/Stanislaus HOME Consortium

OR

Option #3:
Motion: Applying as a single Participating Jurisdiction
OR

Option #4:

Motion: Turlock continuing as the Lead Entity for the City of Turlock/Stanislaus HOME
Consortium

E. Request to authorize Interim City Manager to execute an agreement with Opportunity
Stanislaus to develop and manage Business Development and Assistance Program
AND approve a Service Agreement between the City of Turlock and Opportunity
Stanislaus for the Business Development and Assistance Program and appropriating
$481,338 from Fund 119 [American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)] Unassigned Reserves to
Expense Account Number 119-10-118.43060_047 “Contract Services Business Dev.
And Assist Program”. (Moreno)

Recommended Action:

Motion: Authorizing Interim City Manager to execute an agreement with Opportunity
Stanislaus to develop and manage Business Development and Assistance Program

Resolution: Approving a Service Agreement between the City of Turlock and Opportunity
Stanislaus for the Business Development and Assistance Program and appropriating
$481,338 from Fund 119 [American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)] Unassigned Reserves to
Expense Account Number 119-10-118.43060_047 “Contract Services Business Dev.
And Assist Program”

CITY MANAGER REPORTS/UPDATES

City Manager reports/updates are provided for informational purposes only and no action or discussion may be
undertaken. The City Manager may direct department heads to provide reports/updates at the City Manager’s
request.



Council Agenda
1/25/22
Page 7

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Municipal Services Department (Madden)
1. Monthly Department Update

Fire Department (Botto)
1. Public Safety Briefing

Police Department (Hampton)
1. Public Safety Briefing

City Manager (Eddy)
1. Administration Update

COUNCIL ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION

Requests for Council items for future consideration will be scheduled in accordance with the City of Turlock Elected
and Appointed Officials’ Handbook (Resolution No. 2019-094), unless otherwise specified by the Mayor or a majority
of the Council.

AD HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS: None

COUNCILMEMBER QUESTIONS, COMMENTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

Councilmembers may ask questions, provide comments, and make brief announcements on notable topics of
interest. The Brown Act does not allow discussion or action by the legislative body.

CLOSED SESSION:

A

Conference with Legal Counsel — Anticipated Litigation, Cal. Gov’'t Code §54956.9(d)(2)

“For the purposes of this section, litigation shall be considered pending when any of the
following circumstances exist... A point has been reached where, in the opinion of the
legislative body of the local agency on the advice of its legal counsel, based on existing
facts and circumstances, there is a significant exposure to litigation against the local
agency.”

Potential Case(s): (1 case)

Public Employee Appointment, Cal. Gov't Code §54957(b)(1)
Title: City Manager

. Conference with Labor Negotiators, Cal. Gov't Code §54957.6(a)

“Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a legislative body of a local agency may hold
closed sessions with the local agency's designated representatives regarding the salaries,
salary schedules, or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits of its represented and
unrepresented employees, and, for represented employees, any other matter within the
statutorily provided scope of representation.”

Agency Negotiator: Mayor Amy Bublak

Unrepresented Employee(s): City Manager

REPORTS FROM CLOSED SESSION

ADJOURNMENT



JANUARY 11, 2022

6:00 p.m.

City of Turlock Yosemite Room
156 S. Broadway, Turlock, California

6A

DRAFT MINUTES
Regular Meeting
Turlock City Council

A.

CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Bublak called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

SALUTE TO THE FLAG

ROLL CALL:

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember Mayor
Larson Nosrati Franco Monez Bublak
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Councilmembers Nicole Larson, Andrew Nosrati, Pam Franco, Rebecka

Monez and Mayor Amy Bublak

None

DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS: None

1. CLOSED SESSION:

The Closed Session item(s) for this meeting have been agendized and will be heard toward the
latter part of the meeting.

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS POSTED OR AMENDED

This is the time for the City Council to remove items from the agenda or to change the order of the agenda. Matters
may be taken up out of order of the established agenda by a four-fifths vote of the City Council.

Mayor Bublak announced that Item 3A would be removed for future presentation.

Mayor Bublak requested Action Item 9A be heard prior to the Consent Calendar.

Action:

Motion by Councilmember Monez, seconded by Councilmember Franco,
approving the amended agenda. Motion carried 5/0 by the following vote:

Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember Mayor
Larson Nosrati Franco Monez Bublak
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

3. PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS, APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS,

PRESENTATIONS, AND BRIEFINGS:

A. Presentation: Self-Help Enterprises

Mayor Bublak announced that the Self-Help Enterprises presentation would be removed and
agendized for a future meeting.



LSchimmelfennig
Text Box
6A


4.

B.  Appointment: Planning Commission

DRAFT MINUTES

Regular Meeting
January 11, 2022

Page 2

Mayor Bublak recommended Matthew Davis be reappointed and Mark Reese be appointed
to fill vacancies on the Planning Commission for terms to expire on December 31, 2025.

Action:

Motion by Councilmember Monez, seconded by Councilmember Franco,
reappointing Matthew Davis and appointing Mark Reese to fill vacancies
on the Planning Commission for terms to expire on December 31, 2025.
Motion carried 5/0 by the following vote:

Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember Mayor
Larson Nosrati Franco Monez Bublak
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

C. Appointment. Parks, Arts, and Recreation Commission

Mayor Bublak recommended Keristofer Seryani be reappointed and Barbara Jensen be
appointed to fill vacancies on the Parks, Arts, and Recreation Commission for terms to
expire on December 31, 2024.

Action:

Motion by Councilmember Franco, seconded by Councilmember Monez,
reappointing Keristofer Seryani and appointing Barbara Jensen to fill
vacancies on the Parks, Arts, and Recreation Commission for terms to
expire on December 31, 2024. Motion carried 5/0 by the following vote:

Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember Mayor
Larson Nosrati Franco Monez Bublak
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

D. Appointment. CDBG Grant Selection Committee

Mayor Bublak recommended that Abe Rojas, Allison Jeffery, Beverly Spielman, Kim Castro,
and Dan Navarra be appointed to the CDBG Grant selection Committee for terms to expire
on December 31, 2022.

Action:

Motion by Councilmember Monez, seconded by Councilmember Franco,
appointing Abe Rojas, Allison Jeffery, Beverly Spielman, Kim Castro, and
Dan Navarra to the CDBG Grant selection Committee for terms to expire
on December 31, 2022. Motion carried 5/0 by the following vote:

Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember Mayor
Larson Nosrati Franco Monez Bublak
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Interim City Clerk Kellie Weaver announced that members of the public will be given the opportunity to
address Council on items that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City Council and on any
item on tonight’s agenda. For items listed on the agenda, we ask that you please defer your comments




DRAFT MINUTES
Regular Meeting
January 11, 2022

Page 3

until that item is heard by the Council. For those who are interested in addressing the Council, please
press the “raise hand” feature on your screen or press *9 from your telephone keypad once the Mayor
opens public comment and before she closes public comment. When the Deputy City Clerk announces
your telephone number, you must then press *6 to unmute yourself.

Members of the public will be allotted five (5) minutes for comments and will be taken in the order of
which requests are received. When it is a member’s turn to speak, they will hear an automated prompt
indicating their line has been unmuted — and that is when the five (5) minutes will begin.

Lastly, we request members who choose to address the Council to please state their first and last name
in the event any follow up is needed; however, this is not mandatory.

The following members of the public spoke:

Milt Trieweiler
Theresa Stout
Vintage Drive speaker
Ramon Rodriguez
Cathryn Doo

Ronald Bridegroom

5. MOTION WAIVING READING OF ALL ORDINANCES ON THE AGENDA, EXCEPT BY TITLE

Action: Motion by Councilmember Monez, seconded by Councilmember Franco,
waiving reading of all ordinances on the agenda, except by title. Motion

carried 5/0 by the following vote:

Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember Mayor
Larson Nosrati Franco Monez Bublak
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Action Item 9A was considered out of order prior to the Consent Calendar.

9A.

Finance Director Isaac Moreno presented the staff report on the request to authorize City
Manager to execute service agreement with Performance on Purpose, LLC for City Mental
Wellbeing Program by performing training and coaching AND approving a Service
Agreement between the City of Turlock and Performance on Purpose, LLC for Mental
Wellbeing Program and appropriating $417,994 from Fund 118 [Measure A] Unassigned
Reserve to Expense Account Number 118-10-115.43060_046 “Measure A,
Administration, Measure A — Contract Services Mental Wellbeing.”

Performance on Purpose, LLC representatives, Lauren Hodges, Summer Mattice, and
“Phil” provided information on the multi-faceted Mental Wellbeing Program.

Council and staff discussion included the voluntary nature of the training and assistance,
mental wellbeing aspect of COVID and identification of associated illnesses, success
metrics, marketing to employees, and program confidentiality regulations and assurances.



DRAFT MINUTES
Regular Meeting
January 11, 2022

Page 4

Mayor Bublak opened public comment.
The following members of the public spoke:

Lori

Ronald Bridegroom

Robert Puffer

Ramon Rodriguez

Vintage Drive speaker (Jake)

Lori Jenkins (Mayor Bublak reopened public comment for Ms. Jenkins due to the fact she
was previously not able to connect via Zoom).

Mayor Bublak closed public comment.

Additional Council and staff discussion included the RFP process, the benefits to
employees reaching to the community, funding options, timeliness of the contract, and
development of priorities for use of ARPA funding.

Action: Motion: Tabling authorization for the Interim City Manager to execute
service agreement with Performance on Purpose, LLC for City Mental
Wellbeing Program by performing training and coaching to such time that
all executive leadership positions are filled. Motion failed 2/3 by the
following vote:

Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember Mayor
Larson Nosrati Franco Monez Bublak
Yes Yes No No No

Motion: Motion by Mayor Bublak, seconded by Councilmember Nosrati,
authorizing the Interim City Manager to move forward with the execution of
the service agreement with Performance on Purpose, LLC for City Mental
Wellbeing Program by performing training and coaching, to be funded with
Measure A funding, with the caveat that contact will be made with
Performance on Purpose, LLC by the new City Manager after appointment.
Motion carried 4/1 by the following vote:

Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember Mayor
Larson Nosrati Franco Monez Bublak
Yes Yes No Yes Yes

Resolution No. 2022-001: Approving a Service Agreement between the
City of Turlock and Performance on Purpose, LLC for Mental Wellbeing
Program and appropriating $417,994 from Fund 118 [Measure A|]
Unassigned Reserve to Expense Account Number 118-10-115.43060_046
“‘Measure A, Administration, Measure A — Contract Services Mental
Wellbeing” introduced by Mayor Bublak, seconded by Councilmember
Nosrati, and carried 4/1 by the following vote:




DRAFT MINUTES

Regular Meeting

January 11, 2022

Page 5

Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember Mayor

Larson Nosrati Franco Monez Bublak
Yes Yes No Yes Yes

CONSENT CALENDAR:
Mayor Bublak noted a green sheet to Consent Calendar Item 6F.

Action: Motion by Councilmember Monez, seconded by Councilmember Franco,

adopting the consent calendar. Motion carried 5/0 by the following vote:

Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember Mayor
Larson Nosrati Franco Monez Bublak
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

A. Resolution No. 2022-002: Accepting Monthly Demands of 9/30/21 in the amount of
$16,648,081.89; Weekly Demands of 12/2/21 in the amount of $1,015,711.73; Weekly
Demands of 12/9/21 in the amount of $455,489.66; Weekly Demands of 12/16/21 in the
amount of $1,296,648.79; Weekly Demands of 12/23/21 in the amount of $1,522,703.39

B. Motion: Accepting Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 14, 2021

C. Motion: Approving of Contract Change Order No. 1 (Final) in the decreased amount of
$6,679 (Non-General Fund — Fund 215) for City Project No. 18-53 “Intersection
Improvements at Tully Rd and Tuolumne Rd” bringing the contract total to $467,801
Motion: Accepting improvements for City Project No. 18-54 “Intersection Improvements
at Tully Rd and Tuolumne Rd” and authorizing the Acting City Engineer to file a Notice of
Completion

D. Motion: Approving Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement between the City of Turlock and
Provost & Pritchard Engineering Group for Design Services of the Drinking Water
Chlorination Project to include an additional scope of work for continuation of construction
administration and construction management, and increasing the compensation by
$195,000, for a total not-to-exceed amount of $836,300

E. Resolution No. 2022-003: Approving the Tentative Agreement updating the
Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) between the City of Turlock and Turlock
Management Association — Public Safety covering the period of July 1, 2021 through June
30, 2022

F. Resolution No. 2022-004: Approving a salary range adjustment for the job classification
of Executive Administrative Assistant/Municipal Services from Confidential salary range
27.4 to range 29.2, effective January 11, 2022
Motion:  Approving update of the job description for Executive Administrative
Assistant/Municipal Services

G. Resolution No. 2022-005: Reinstating the Executive Assistant to the City Manager/City
Clerk position at salary range 35.1 and approving modifications to the job description,
effective January 11, 2022
Resolution No. 2022-006: Approving an amendment to the salary schedule of the
existing management schedule of benefits and policies adopted by Resolution No. 2021-
131 dated July 13, 2021 to include all approved management salaries




H.

DRAFT MINUTES
Regular Meeting
January 11, 2022

Page 6

Resolution No. 2022-007: Reaffirming the Director of Emergency Services Proclamation
of Existence of a Local Emergency in response to COVID-19

7. FINAL READINGS:

A

Deputy Development Services Director/Planning Manager Katie Quintero presented the
final reading to amend the Zoning Map of the City of Turlock, California, attached to Title
9 of the Turlock Municipal Code [Rezone 2021-01 Planned Development 280 (Balisha
Ranch)] and presented information on the revised Resolution Establishing Conditions of
Approval for Planned Development 280 (Balisha Ranch).

Mayor Bublak opened public comment.
The following members of the public spoke:

George Jenkins
Lori

Cheryl Kelly
Ramon Rodriguez

Mayor Bublak closed the public hearing.

Additional Council and staff discussion included setting precedent for public opinion and
not following Ordinance, future state mandates calling for higher density areas, costs
associated with additional changes, potential for policy setting priority for pedestrians and
bicycles, creation of more livable and sustainable communities, development of
undeveloped lots centered within City limits, and deviations of lot size, and direction to
implement traffic controls on the project.

Action: Ordinance No. 1287-CS: Motion by Councilmember Franco, seconded by
Councilmember Monez, amending the Zoning Map of the City of Turlock,
California, attached to Title 9 of the Turlock Municipal Code [Rezone 2021-
01 Planned Development 280 (Balisha Ranch)]. Motion carried 3/2 by the
following vote:
Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember Mayor
Larson Nosrati Franco Monez Bublak
No No Yes Yes Yes
Action: Resolution No. 2022-008: Motion by Councilmember Franco, seconded

by Councilmember Monez, Establishing Conditions of Approval for
Planned Development 280 (Balisha Ranch). Motion carried 3/2 by the
following vote:

Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember Mayor
Larson Nosrati Franco Monez Bublak

No No Yes Yes Yes




DRAFT MINUTES
Regular Meeting
January 11, 2022

Page 7

Request to repeal Turlock Municipal Code Title 6, Chapter 3, regarding Garbage, Rubbish,
and Organic Refuse in its entirety, and add a new Title 6, Chapter 3, regarding Garbage,
Recyclable Materials, and Organic Waste to incorporate changes related to upcoming SB
1383 state mandated requirements.

Ordinance No. 1288-CS: Motion by Councilmember Franco, seconded by
Councilmember Larson, Repealing Turlock Municipal Code Title 6, Chapter
3, regarding Garbage, Rubbish, and Organic Refuse in its entirety, and
adding a new Title 6, Chapter 3, regarding Garbage, Recyclable Materials,
and Organic Waste to incorporate changes related to upcoming SB 1383
state mandated requirements. Motion carried 5/0 by the following vote:

Action:

Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember Mayor
Larson Nosrati Franco Monez Bublak
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

A

Deputy Development Services Director/Planning Manager Katie Quintero presented the
request to deny the appeal and affirm the Planning Commission decision Denying
Variance 2021-01 (Perfect Union) at 2500 N. Golden State Boulevard.

Council and staff discussion included various signage on Golden State Boulevard.
Mayor Bublak opened the public hearing.

The following members of the public spoke:

Caity Maple

Robert Puffer

Ronald Bridegroom

Ramon Rodriguez

Mayor Bublak closed the public hearing.

Council discussion included variance purpose and process, supporting staff and Planning
Commission decisions

Resolution No. 2022-009: Motion by Councilmember Monez, seconded by
Councilmember Franco, Denying the appeal and affirming the Planning
Commission decision Denying Variance 2021-01 (Perfect Union) at 2500 N.
Golden State Boulevard. Motion carried 3/2 by the following vote:

Action:

Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember Mayor
Larson Nosrati Franco Monez Bublak
No No Yes Yes Yes




9.

DRAFT MINUTES
Regular Meeting
January 11, 2022

Page 8

ACTION ITEMS:

Action Item 9A was heard out of order prior to the Consent Calendar.

10.

B.

Interim City Manager Sarah Tamey Eddy presented the staff report on the request to
accept and consent to the Interim City Manager’s appointment of Jason Hedden to the
position of Chief of Police for the City of Turlock Police Department, effective February 16,
2022, and approving an Employment Agreement.

Mayor Bublak opened public comment.

The following members of the public spoke:

Robert Puffer
Ronald Bridegroom
Mayor Bublak closed public comment.

Staff responded to public comment.

Council discussion included the integrity of the process to select the most qualified
candidate, the desire that a City Manager would have been in place prior to the
appointment of the Police Chief, and that three separate panels unanimously voted for
him.
Action: Resolution No. 2022-010: Motion by Councilmember Monez, seconded
by Councilmember Franco, accepting and consenting to the Interim City
Manager’s appointment of Jason Hedden to the position of Chief of Police
for the City of Turlock Police Department, effective February 16, 2022, and
approving an Employment Agreement. Motion carried 5/0 by the following

vote:
Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember Mayor
Larson Nosrati Franco Monez Bublak
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

CITY MANAGER REPORTS/UPDATES

City Manager reports/updates are provided for informational purposes only and no action or discussion may be
undertaken. The City Manager may direct department heads to provide reports/updates at the City Manager’s request.

A. City Manager

1. Administration

A written City Manager update was provided in the agenda packet related to the
National Opioid Settlement, Fire Services, and City Clerk status.

In addition, Interim City Manager Sarah Tamey Eddy spoke regarding the status
of the RAD Card. She also provided a City COVID update related to masking, City
office closures, Council Meeting procedures, monitoring, and extended response
times related to public inquiry.




DRAFT MINUTES
Regular Meeting
January 11, 2022

Page 9

11. COUNCIL ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION

Requests for Council items for future consideration will be scheduled in accordance with the City of Turlock Elected
and Appointed Officials’ Handbook (Resolution No. 2019-094), unless otherwise specified by the Mayor or a majority
of the Council.

Councilmember Larson requested consideration of a COVID presentation by new Emanuel
Medical Center CEO, Dr. Nadu.

12. AD HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS: None

13. COUNCILMEMBER QUESTIONS, COMMENTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

Councilmembers may ask questions, provide comments, and make brief announcements on notable topics of interest.
The Brown Act does not allow discussion or action by the legislative body.

Councilmember Nosrati noted his desire to increase the level of public engagement through offsite
meetings.

Councilmember Franco thanked Councilmember Monez and Supervisor Vito Chiesa for their
efforts on getting additional covid tests, wished all a Happy New Year, and thanked City staff for
standing in harm’s way for fellow staff members and the community.

Councilmember Monez thanked Interim Fire Chief Botto and Supervisor Vito Chiesa for their
efforts related to COVID and getting additional tests, noted the contagious nature of the Omicron
variant, and praised employee efforts.

Mayor Bublak offered to meet individually with each Councilmember within their district to conduct
impromptu informational meetings with their constituents.

Mayor Bublak adjourned to the Successor Agency Meeting at 9:38 p.m.

Mayor Bublak reconvened the Regular City Council Meeting at 9:42 p.m.

14. CLOSED SESSION:
Interim City Clerk Kellie Weaver introduced the Closed Session Items.

A. Conference with Legal Counsel — Anticipated Litigation, Cal. Gov't Code §54956.9(d)(2)
“For the purposes of this section, litigation shall be considered pending when any of the
following circumstances exist... A point has been reached where, in the opinion of the
legislative body of the local agency on the advice of its legal counsel, based on existing facts
and circumstances, there is a significant exposure to litigation against the local agency.”
Potential Case(s): (2 cases)

B. Liability Claims, Cal. Gov't Code §54956.95
“For the purposes of [Section 54956.9], ‘existing facts and circumstances’ shall consist only of
one of the following: The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Government Claims Act (Division
3.6 (commencing with Section 810) of Title 1 of the Government Code) or some
other written communication from a potential plaintiff threatening litigation, which claim or
communication shall be available for public inspection pursuant to Section 54957.5.”




15.

16.

DRAFT MINUTES
Regular Meeting
January 11, 2022

Page 10

Claimant: Miguel Garcia
Agency Claimed Against: City of Turlock

C. Liability Claims, Cal. Gov't Code §54956.95
“For the purposes of [Section 54956.9], ‘existing facts and circumstances’ shall consist only of
one of the following: The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Government Claims Act (Division
3.6 (commencing with Section 810) of Title 1 of the Government Code) or some other written
communication from a potential plaintiff threatening litigation, which claim or communication
shall be available for public inspection pursuant to Section 54957.5.”
Claimant: Jammu Petro Food Inc, RJ Singh
Agency Claimed Against: City of Turlock

D. Liability Claims, Cal. Gov’t Code §54956.95
“For the purposes of [Section 54956.9], ‘existing facts and circumstances’ shall consist only of
one of the following: The receipt of a claim pursuant to the Government Claims Act (Division
3.6 (commencing with Section 810) of Title 1 of the Government Code) or some other written
communication from a potential plaintiff threatening litigation, which claim or communication
shall be available for public inspection pursuant to Section 54957.5.”
Claimant: Jammu Petro Food Inc, RJ Singh
Agency Claimed Against: City of Turlock

REPORTS FROM CLOSED SESSION

Mayor Bublak indicated Closed Session Item 14B was denied. There was no other reportable
action.

ADJOURNMENT

Mayor Bublak adjourned the special meeting at 10:02 p.m. Motion carried unanimously.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED

Kellie E. Weaver, Interim City Clerk



JANUARY 13, 2022

2:00 p.m.

City of Turlock Yosemite Room
156 S. Broadway, Turlock, California

DRAFT MINUTES
Special Meeting
Turlock City Council

0. A.

B.

CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Bublak called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m.

SALUTE TO THE FLAG

ROLL CALL:
Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember | Councilmember Mayor
Larson Nosrati Franco Monez Bublak
Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
PRESENT: Councilmembers Nicole Larson, Andrew Nosrati, Pam Franco, Rebecka
Monez, and Mayor Amy Bublak
ABSENT: None

1. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

Mayor Bublak opened the public hearing. No one spoke. Mayor Bublak closed the public hearing.

2. CLOSED SESSION:

Deputy City Clerk Lisa Schimmelfennig introduced the Closed Session Iltems.

A

Public Employee Appointment, Cal. Gov't Code §54957(b)(1)

“Subject to paragraph (2), this chapter shall not be construed to prevent the legislative body of a local
agency from holding closed sessions during a regular or special meeting to consider the appointment,
employment, evaluation of performance, discipline, or dismissal of a public employee or to hear
complaints or charges brought against the employee by another person or employee unless the
employee requests a public session.”

Title: City Manager

3. REPORTS FROM CLOSED SESSION:

Mayor Bublak announced that there was no reportable action taken.

ADJOURNMENT:

Mayor Bublak adjourned the special meeting at 4:50 p.m. Motion carried unanimously.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED

Lisa Schimmelfennig, Deputy City Clerk



City Council Staff Report
January 25, 2022

6B

Tt .'.i:llllli:l.'::li K

From: Katie Quintero
Deputy Director of Development Services / Planning Manager
Prepared by: Stephen Fremming, P.E., Principal Civil Engineer
Agendized by: Sarah Tamey Eddy, Interim City Manager
1. ACTION RECOMMENDED:

Resolution: Re-appropriating  $170,000 to account number 413-51-
539.51027_001 “Capital Clarifier #5 & MC Upgrade” from Fund 413
unallocated reserves to complete funding for City Project No. 15-39C
“Turlock Regional Water Quality Control Facility Secondary Clarifier
No. 5 and Denitrification”

Motion: Approving Contract Change Order No. 7 (Final) in the amount of
$36,977.08 (Non-General Fund - Fund 413) with CW Roen
Construction of Danville, California for City Project No. 15-39C
"Turlock Regional Water Quality Control Facility Secondary Clarifier
No. 5 and Denitrification” (upgrade and expansion of the wastewater
treatment plant) bringing the contract total to $19,703,163.29

Motion: Accepting Improvements and authorizing the City Engineer to file a
Notice of Completion for City Project No. 15-39C "Turlock Regional
Water Quality Control Facility Secondary Clarifier No. 5 and
Denitrification”

2. SYNOPSIS:

These actions will re-appropriate unspent funds from the previous fiscal year,

approve Contract Change Order No. 7 (Final), and authorize the City Engineer to

file a Notice of Completion for City Project No. 15-39C "Turlock Regional Water

Quality Control Facility Secondary Clarifier No. 5 and Denitrification”

3. DISCUSSION OF ISSUE:

On July 25, 2017, the City of Turlock approved an agreement with CW Roen
Construction of Danville, California, in the amount of $18,068,000. The project was
substantially complete in February of 2020. The improvements have allowed the
City to meet its NPDES permit requirements for denitrification and has expanded its


LSchimmelfennig
Text Box
6B


Agenda Staff Report
1/25/22
Page 2

ability to provide secondary treatment of wastewater with the construction of Clarifier
No. 5.

The project has now achieved final completion. The delay between substantial
completion and final completion was due to additional work that was added to the
project scope as part of the global settlement formalized in Contract Change Order
No. 4. Change Order No. 4 added a redundant degritter to the wastewater treatment
plant at a heavily discounted cost of $25,000, in lieu of the estimated construction
cost of $385,400, in lieu of the City enforcing delay damages of the contract due to
contractor not achieving substantial completion before the prescribed due date.
Upon approval of Change Order No. 4, the contractor procured equipment for the
degritter installation, which had a significantly long lead time. Additionally, the
contractor encountered changes in conditions as described in the original design
plans. The degritter has now been commissioned and is in operation.

Contract Change Order No. 7 (Final) consists of several extra work items related to
the degritter installation referenced in the paragraph above that total $36,997.08.
This cost was calculated and confirmed by the on-site construction manager, Carollo
Engineers, who verified that the time and materials were commensurate with the
actual effort for out-of-scope work. A description of the extra work items is provided
below.

e PCO 051 - Modify Degritter #3 Installation - $36,997.08

o Relocation of Degritter No. 3 adjacent to new Degritter No. 4. This was
done so that the new degritter would be installed properly and to
square up new piping and reduce the number of fittings required due
to the existing degritter not being installed per the original plans. The
extra work included cutting the existing equipment anchors, removing
the discharge chute, removing part of the concrete deck, repairing all
demolition areas, then reinstalling the equipment anchors, discharge
chute, and piping.

o Piping adjustments to account for existing piping not shown on the
project plans.

o Remove reinforced concrete not shown on plans to accommodate
repair of drain lines.

o Standby time during plant shutdown that affected the critical path of
the work.

o Backfill around the shallow drain lines with controlled low strength
material in lieu of aggregate base, as required by the engineer, but not
shown on the plans.

o Re-route of a drain line tie-in point from an existing drain pipe to a
concrete drain vault. The original tie-in point was found to not be
suitable due to corrosion of the materials.



Change Order Summary:

Agenda Staff Report
1/25/22
Page 3

Change Order History Amount City Council Meeting
Original Contract $ 18,068,000.00 July 25, 2017
Change Order No. 1 $ 750,168.73 January 8, 2019
Change Order No. 2 $ 306,877.02 April 23, 2019
Change Order No. 3 $ 254,354.43 June 11, 2019
Change Order No. 4 $ 25,000.00 March 24, 2020
Change Order No. 5 $ 208,044.50 March 24, 2020
Change Order No. 6 $ 53,741.53 September 8, 2020
Change Order No. 7 (Final) $ 36,977.08 January 25, 2022
Adjusted Total Contract $ 19,703,163.29

BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION:

A. City Policy is the City Engineer is authorized to approve change orders up to
2%, the City Manager is authorized to approve change orders up to 5%, and
all other change orders must be approved by the City Council.

B. Contract Change Order No. 7 (Final) includes various minor extra work items
that are necessary for the proper function and operation of the new
improvements provided under this contract.

C. California Civil Code Section 9204 allows the City Council to authorize the City
Engineer to sign the Notice of Completion.

FISCAL IMPACT / BUDGET AMENDMENT:

*NOTE No General Fund monies will be used for this project.

The project account number is 413-51-539.51027_001 “Capital Clarifier #5 & MC
Upgrade.” There is currently a $0 balance in the current Fiscal Year 2021-2022
budget, as it was anticipated that work would be completed in Fiscal Year 2020-
2021. A budget amendment re-appropriating unspent funds is necessary to provide
adequate funding for final project costs in Fiscal Year 2021-22 as follows:



Agenda Staff Report
1/25/22
Page 4

Description

Amount

Amended Construction Contract Amount thru CCO
No. 7 (Final)
--CW Roen Construction

19,703,163.28

Less construction contract payments thru FY 2020-
2021
--CW Roen Construction

(19,605,188.43)

Amended Construction Management Contract thru
Amendment No. 3
--Carollo Engineers

1,791,894.00

Less payments for Construction Management
Contract thru FY 2020-21
--Carollo Engineers

(1,728,941.45)

Estimated contract administration in FY 2021-2022

--City Engineering 8,000.00
Fiscal Year 2021-22 funding required (minimum) 168,927.40
Appropriation requested (rounded) 170,000.00

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Recommend Approval.

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS:
Recommend Approval.

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:

On February 28, 2017, the City Council found the project to be exempt from the
provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) in accordance with
Section 15302 (Replacement or Reconstruction) of the CEQA Guidelines. No

further environmental determination is required at this time.

ALTERNATIVES:

A. Council could choose not to approve the resolution appropriating funds. Staff
does not recommend this alternative as the appropriation is needed to
complete funding of the project in Fiscal Year 2021-2022.



Agenda Staff Report
1/25/22
Page 5

Council could choose not to approve Contract Change Orders No. 7 (Final).
Staff does not recommend this alternative as additional work beyond the
scope of work of the original plans were necessary for the installation of
degritter no. 4.

Council could deny authorizing the City Engineer to file the Notice of
Completion. Staff does not recommend this alternative as all work has been
completed in accordance with the project plans and specifications.



Agenda Staff Report
1/25/22
Page 6

Project Vicinity Map

PE - OE O\

“WABTEWATER  ° “ol. Sl
TREATMENT [ Srmmen

_PLANT , Te:

j o LY
-3# e |
S Rl
]
K o




Agenda Staff Report
1/25/22
Page 7

Project Location Map




BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TURLOCK

IN THE MATTER OF RE-APPROPRIATING } RESOLUTION NO. 2022-
$170,000 TO ACCOUNT NUMBER }
413-51-539.51027_001 “CAPITAL CLARIFIER #5 }
& MC UPGRADE” FROM FUND 413 }
UNALLOCATED RESERVES TO COMPLETE }
FUNDING FOR CITY PROJECT NO. 15-39C }
“TURLOCK REGIONAL WATER QUALITY }
CONTROL FACILITY SECONDARY }

}

CLARIFIER NO. 5 AND DENITRIFICATION”

WHEREAS, by separate action, Council is requested to approve Contract Change
Order No. 7 (Final) in the amount of $36,977.08 and authorizing the City Engineer to file
a Notice of Completion for City Project No. 15-39C “Turlock Regional Water Quality
Control Facility Secondary Clarifier No. 5 and Denitrification;” and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds were available in the past Fiscal Year 2020-2021
budget under project account number 413-51-539.51027_001 “Clarifier #5 & MC
Upgrade,” however there is currently a $0 balance in the current fiscal year budget; and

WHEREAS, it is estimated that project expenses in Fiscal Year 2020-2021 will
total $168,947.40; and

WHEREAS, there is sufficient funding in Fund 413 unallocated reserves to provide
the balance of funding needed for the project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Turlock
does hereby re-appropriate $170,000 to account number 413-51-539.51027_001 “Capital
Clarifier #5 & MC Upgrade” from Fund 413 unallocated reserves to complete funding for
City Project No. 15-39C “Turlock Regional Water Quality Control Facility Secondary
Clarifier No. 5 and Denitrification.”

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of
Turlock this 25" day of January, 2022, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

NOT PARTICIPATING:
ABSENT:

ATTEST:

Kellie E. Weaver, Interim City Clerk,
City of Turlock, County of Stanislaus,
State of California



é&
CITY OF

TURLOCK

INC. 1908

CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER

Date issued: January 25, 2022 Change Order No.: 7 (FINAL)
Project Name: Turlock Regional Water Quality Control Facility Secondary Clarifier No. 5 and
Denitrification

C.W. Roen Construction Company Project No.: 15-39C
40 Oak Court Original Contract Amount: $18,068,000.00
Danville, California 94526 Contract Award Date: July 25, 2017

925-837-5501

You are directed to make the following changes in this contract as requested by The City of Turlock:

ITEM Unit: | Quantity: Unit Price: Total:
71 PCO 051 - Modify Degritter #3 LS 1 $ 36,977.08 | $ 36,977.08
Installation

Actual Amount Paid to Contractor for Bid Items (See Attached) $ 18,068,000.00
Contractor's Bid Amount for Bid Items $ 18,068,000.00
Subtotal of Difference $ (0.00)| $ (0.00)
Total this CCO= $ 36,977.08
The original contract sum = $ 18,068,000.00
Net change by previous change orders = $ 1,598,186.21
The contract amount will be increased by the amount of = $ 36,977.08
The new contract sum including this change order will be = $ 19,703,163.28
No contract time adjustments are included in this change order
Accepted: Date:
C.W. Roen Construction Company, Contractor
Recommended: Date:
Gary Taylor, P.E., Acting City Engineer
Approved: Date:

Sarah Tamey Eddy, Interim City Manager



Turlock Regional Water Quality Control Facility Secondary Clarifier No. 5 and Denitrification

FINAL QUANTITIES

City Project No.: 15-39C

I;Ie: Item Description ”';le ’;’;3:9 Unit Price F&":;ﬁ;;::’ Fl:%g:;:#al QuaB::gties Bid Amount Total Difference
1 General Requirements
1-1 GC Bonds LS $ 120,000.00 1.00 $ 120,000.00 1.00 $ 120,000.00 | $ -
1-2 Insurance; All Risk & Auto LS $ 115,000.00 1.00 $ 115,000.00 1.00 $ 115,000.00 | $ -
1-3 Special Insurance: Pollution LS $ 20,000.00 1.00 $ 20,000.00 1.00 $ 20,000.00 | $ -
1-4 SWPPP LS $ 30,000.00 1.00 $ 30,000.00 1.00 $ 30,000.00 | $ -
1-5 Install Field Office LS $ 35,000.00 1.00 $ 35,000.00 1.00 $ 35,000.00 | $ -
1-6 Load, Transport, Unload Construction Tools LS $ 70,000.00 1.00 $ 70,000.00 1.00 $ 70,000.00 | $ -
and Storage
1-7 Load, Transport, Unload Heavy Equipment LS $ 160,000.00 1.00 $ 160,000.00 1.00 $ 160,000.00 | $ -
1-8 Project Schedule, Schedul of Values, LS $ 50,000.00 1.00 $ 50,000.00 1.00 $ 50,000.00 | $ -
Submittal Schedule
1-9 Process Start-Up; Plan,Commissioning LS $ 70,000.00 1.00 $ 70,000.00 1.00 $ 70,000.00 | $ -
1-10 Demobilization LS $ 35,000.00 1.00 $ 35,000.00 1.00 $ 35,000.00 | $ -
1-11 Bid Item 1: Shoring LS $ 50,000.00 1.00 $ 50,000.00 1.00 $ 50,000.00 | $ -
1-12 Bid Item 2: Geotech LS $ 5,330.00 1.00 $ 5,330.00 1.00 $ 5,330.00 | $ -
1-13 Bid Item 4: Locate Unanticipated LS $ 25,000.00 1.00 $ 25,000.00 1.00 $ 25,000.00 | $ -
Underground Utilities
1-14 Bid Item 5: Disposal of Landfill Debris: LS $ 412,500.00 1.00 $ 412,500.00 1.00 $ 412,500.00 | $ -
7,500 ton at $55 per ton
2 Sitework
2-1 Install Owner-Furnished Gate at Splitter Box LS $ 6,815.00 1.00 $ 6,815.00 1.00 $ 6,815.00 | $ -
2-2 Excavate Debris @ Sec Clarifier (Stockpile) LS $ 365,750.00 1.00 $ 365,750.00 1.00 $ 365,750.00 | $ -
2-3 Stormwater Basin Over-exc LS $ 166,250.00 1.00 $ 166,250.00 1.00 $ 166,250.00 | $ -
2-4 Install Dewater Pumps & Discharge Pipe LS $ 66,500.00 1.00 $ 66,500.00 1.00 $ 66,500.00 | $ -
2-5 Exc - Dewater Well MH Sht 02503 LS $ 79,800.00 1.00 $ 79,800.00 1.00 $ 79,800.00 | $ -
2-6 Stormwater Basin - Backfill & Cut Slopes LS $ 59,850.00 1.00 $ 59,850.00 1.00 $ 59,850.00 | $ -
2-7 Clear & Grub @ MCC-8 LS $  6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 | $ -
2-8 F,R, & P Slab @ MCC-8 LS $ 33,250.00 1.00 $ 33,250.00 1.00 $ 33,250.00 | $ -
2-9 Demo Stairs @ Biotower #1 LS $  6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 | $ -

PAGE 1 OF 11




2-10 F, R, &P Stairs @ Biotower #1 LS $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 | $
2-11 Rip Rap C Gutter LS $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 | $
2-12 Site - Subgrade LS $ 33,250.00 1.00 $ 33,250.00 1.00 $ 33,250.00 | $
2-13 | Valley Gutter LS $ 33,250.00 1.00 $ 33,250.00 1.00 $ 33,250.00 | $
2-14 | Agg Base LS $ 108,000.00 1.00 $ 108,000.00 1.00 $ 108,000.00 | $
2-15 | A.C. Paving LS $ 96,000.00 1.00 $ 96,000.00 1.00 $ 96,000.00 | $
2-16 3" Rock Surface LS $ 24,000.00 1.00 $ 24,000.00 1.00 $ 24,000.00 | $
3 Yard Piping
3-1 YP - 36" ML Pipe to future SC-6 LS $ 87,000.00 1.00 $ 87,000.00 1.00 $ 87,000.00 | $
3-2 YP - 36" ML Pipe to SC-5 LS $ 108,750.00 1.00 $ 108,750.00 1.00 $ 108,750.00 | $
3-3 YP - 36" SE SC-5 to Junct Box 1A LS $ 116,000.00 1.00 $ 116,000.00 1.00 $ 116,000.00 | $
34 YP - 36" SE Connect @ Junct Box 1A LS $ 21,750.00 1.00 $ 21,750.00 1.00 $ 21,750.00 | $
3-5 YP-8"ML @AB4-7 A.C.Demo LS $ 21,750.00 1.00 $ 21,750.00 1.00 $ 21,750.00 | $
3-6 YP - 8" ML AB 6-7 to AB 4-5 LS $ 72,500.00 1.00 $ 72,500.00 1.00 $ 72,500.00 | $
3-7 YP - 24" RAS Station 1+00 to 4+00 LS $ 58,000.00 1.00 $ 58,000.00 1.00 $ 58,000.00 | $
3-8 YP - 24" RAS Station 4+00 to 6+40 LS $ 87,000.00 1.00 $ 87,000.00 1.00 $ 87,000.00 | $
3-9 YP - Excavation & Demo Abandoned 30", LS $ 21,750.00 1.00 $ 21,750.00 1.00 $ 21,750.00 | $
42" &18" Pipe
3-10 YP - RAS Tie-In @ RAS Vault LS $ 7,250.00 1.00 $ 7,250.00 1.00 $ 7,250.00 | $
3-11 YP - 16" & 20" RAS Manifold @ RP Station LS $ 21,750.00 1.00 $ 21,750.00 1.00 $ 21,750.00 | $
#2
3-12 YP - 20" RAS Station 1+00 to Wye LS $ 43,500.00 1.00 $ 43,500.00 1.00 $ 43,500.00 | $
3-13 | YP - 30" RAS Wye to 7+25 LS $ 58,000.00 1.00 $ 58,000.00 1.00 $ 58,000.00 | $
3-14 YP - 20" Tie-In @ Biotower #1 LS $ 10,875.00 1.00 $ 10,875.00 1.00 $ 10,875.00 | $
3-15 | YP - 20" Tie-In @ Biotower #2 LS $ 10,875.00 1.00 $ 10,875.00 1.00 $ 10,875.00 | $
3-16 YP - 10" D to Stormwater Basin LS $ 21,750.00 1.00 $ 21,750.00 1.00 $ 21,750.00 | $
3-17 | YP-6"SC SC-4 to SC-5 YP-3 LS $ 58,000.00 1.00 $ 58,000.00 1.00 $ 58,000.00 | $
3-18 YP-1"SA SC-4t0SC-5 YP-3 LS $ 7,250.00 1.00 $ 7,250.00 1.00 $ 7,250.00 | $
3-19 | YP-1"SA SC-5to RAS P Station LS $ 7,250.00 1.00 $ 7,250.00 1.00 $ 7,250.00 | $
3-20 YP- 3"2W & 2" CLS @ S Clari -5 LS $ 7,250.00 1.00 $ 7,250.00 1.00 $ 7,250.00 | $
3-21 YP - 6"2W @ F. Hydrant AB-6 LS $  3,625.00 1.00 $ 3,625.00 1.00 $ 3,625.00 | $
4 Secondary Clarifier No. 5
4-1 SC 5 -Excavate Center & Subgrade LS $ 266,000.00 1.00 $ 266,000.00 1.00 $ 266,000.00 | $
4-2 SC 5 -F & P Center Bottom Slab @ 70.2 LS $ 74,850.00 1.00 $ 74,850.00 1.00 $ 74,850.00 | $
4-3 SC 5 - Scum Box - Exc & Rock LS $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 | $
4-4 SC 5 - Set Spools 30"ML, 20"RAS, 12"DW LS $ 20,960.00 1.00 $ 20,960.00 1.00 $ 20,960.00 | $
4-5 SC 5 - Scum Box F&P Slab @72.5 LS $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 | $
4-6 SC 5 - Dewater Well F&P Slab LS $  2,660.00 1.00 $ 2,660.00 1.00 $ 2,660.00 | $
4-7 SC 5 - Dewater Well - Stack MH to 82 +/- LS $ 9,975.00 1.00 $ 9,975.00 1.00 $ 9,975.00 | $
4-8 SC 5 - Center - F& P Walls to EI 76.8 LS $ 46,600.00 1.00 $ 46,600.00 1.00 $ 46,600.00 | $
4-9 SC 5 - Scum Box F&P Walls to 81- LS $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 | $
4-10 SC 5-36" ML - Lay & Encase Under S.C. LS $ 48,250.00 1.00 $ 48,250.00 1.00 $ 48,250.00 | $
4-11 SC 5-20"RAS - Lay & Encase Under S.C. LS $ 41,600.00 1.00 $ 41,600.00 1.00 $ 41,600.00 | $
4-12 SC 5 - Center Well Rock Backfill LS $  3,900.00 1.00 $ 3,900.00 1.00 $ 3,900.00 | $

PAGE 2 OF 11




4-13 SC 5 - Scumbox Backfill to @ 81 LS $ 7,315.00 1.00 $ 7,315.00 1.00 $ 7,315.00 [ $
4-14 SC 5 -8"/12" DW Pipe LS $ 16,650.00 1.00 $ 16,650.00 1.00 $ 16,650.00 | $
4-15 SC 5 - Cut Subgrade & Drain Rock LS $ 399,000.00 1.00 $ 399,000.00 1.00 $ 399,000.00 | $
4-16 SC5-20"RAS SC-5 to RAS P Sta LS $ 39,950.00 1.00 $ 39,950.00 1.00 $ 39,950.00 | $
4-17 SC5-SlabR, F, & P #1 LS $ 110,000.00 1.00 $ 110,000.00 1.00 $ 110,000.00 | $
4-18 SC5-SlabR, F, & P #2 LS $ 110,000.00 1.00 $ 110,000.00 1.00 $ 110,000.00 | $
4-19 SC5-SlabR,F, & P #3 LS $ 110,000.00 1.00 $ 110,000.00 1.00 $ 110,000.00 | $
4-20 SC5-SlabR, F, & P #4 LS $ 110,000.00 1.00 $ 110,000.00 1.00 $ 110,000.00 | $
4-21 SC5-WallR,F, &P #1 LS $ 180,000.00 1.00 $ 180,000.00 1.00 $ 180,000.00 | $
4-22 SC5-WallR,F, &P #2 LS $ 180,000.00 1.00 $ 180,000.00 1.00 $ 180,000.00 | $
4-23 SC5-WallR,F, &P #3 LS $ 180,000.00 1.00 $ 180,000.00 1.00 $ 180,000.00 | $
4-24 SC5-WallR,F, &P #4 LS $ 180,000.00 1.00 $ 180,000.00 1.00 $ 180,000.00 | $
4-25 SC 5 - Launder-Shoring -Section 1 & 2 LS $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 | $
4-26 SC 5 - Launder Slab & Walls R, F, & P #1 LS $ 54,050.00 1.00 $ 54,050.00 1.00 $ 54,050.00 | $
4-27 SC 5 - Launder Slab & Walls R, F, & P #2 LS $ 54,050.00 1.00 $ 54,050.00 1.00 $ 54,050.00 | $
4-28 SC 5 - F&P Outlet Box Walls LS $ 59,850.00 1.00 $ 59,850.00 1.00 $ 59,850.00 | $
4-29 SC 5 - F&P Scum Box Walls to Elevation LS $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 | $
100.79
4-30 SC 5 - Hydrotest LS $  3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 | $
4-31 SC 5 - Backfill to El 96 LS $ 232,750.00 1.00 $ 232,750.00 1.00 $ 232,750.00 | $
4-32 SC 5 - F&P Scum Box Slab @ 96.7 LS $  6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 | $
4-33 SC 5 - S.C. Equipment Field Paint LS $ 26,600.00 1.00 $ 26,600.00 1.00 $ 26,600.00 [ $
4-34 SC 5 - Clari Equipment Deliver LS $ 731,500.00 1.00 $ 731,500.00 1.00 $ 731,500.00 | $
4-35 SC 5 - Clari Equipment Install LS $ 99,750.00 1.00 $ 99,750.00 1.00 $ 99,750.00 | $
4-36 SC 5 - 8" SL Gate (@ Scum Box) LS $  9,975.00 1.00 $ 9,975.00 1.00 $ 9,975.00 | $
4-37 SC 5 - Scum Pumps - Deliver LS $ 66,500.00 1.00 $ 66,500.00 1.00 $ 66,500.00 | $
4-38 SC 5 - Scum Pumps - Install LS $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 | $
4-39 SC 5 - 2W Pipe on Clarifier Bridge LS $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 | $
4-40 SC 5 - 6" SC Discharge Pipe & Valves LS $ 46,550.00 1.00 $ 46,550.00 1.00 $ 46,550.00 | $
4-41 SC 5 - Swept Grout LS $ 5,500.00 1.00 $ 5,500.00 1.00 $ 5,500.00 | $
4-42 SC 5 - Sec Clarifier Final Checkout LS $  6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 | $
5 RAS Pump Station No. 2
5-1 RAS - Excavate RAS P. Sta No. 2 LS $ 86,450.00 1.00 $ 86,450.00 1.00 $ 86,450.00 | $
5-2 RAS -R, F & P Slab @ 80.67 LS $ 15,960.00 1.00 $ 15,960.00 1.00 $ 15,960.00 | $
5-3 RAS - Wet Well Walls LS $ 93,100.00 1.00 $ 93,100.00 1.00 $ 93,100.00 | $
5-4 RAS - Backfill to 86- LS $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 | $
5-5 RAS - F&P South Slab/Sump LS $ 15,960.00 1.00 $ 15,960.00 1.00 $ 15,960.00 | $
5-6 RAS - F&P Walls South Vault LS $ 33,250.00 1.00 $ 33,250.00 1.00 $ 33,250.00 | $
5-7 RAS - 20" RAS Wall Spools Deliver LS $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 | $
5-8 RAS - Wet Well Hydrotest LS $  3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 | $
5-9 RAS - Backfill Wet Well - North LS $ 59,850.00 1.00 $ 59,850.00 1.00 $ 59,850.00 | $
5-10 RAS - 24" RAS Under Slab LS $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 | $
5-11 RAS - F&P North Slab LS $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 | $
5-12 RAS - Shoring - Wet Well Deck LS $  6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 | $
5-13 RAS - F&P Wet Well Deck LS $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 | $
5-14 RAS - 24" & 40" S| Gate - Deliver LS $ 86,450.00 1.00 $ 86,450.00 1.00 $ 86,450.00 | $

PAGE 3 OF 11




5-15 RAS - 24" & 40" S| Gate - Install LS $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 | $
5-16 RAS - 16" RAS Discharge Pipe LS $  9,975.00 1.00 $ 9,975.00 1.00 $ 9,975.00 | $
5-17 RAS - RAS Pumps -Deliver LS $ 199,500.00 1.00 $ 199,500.00 1.00 $ 199,500.00 | $
5-18 RAS - RAS Pumps - Install LS $  9,975.00 1.00 $ 9,975.00 1.00 $ 9,975.00 | $
5-19 RAS - RAS Sump Pumps -Deliver LS $ 26,600.00 1.00 $ 26,600.00 1.00 $ 26,600.00 | $
5-20 RAS - RAS Sump Pumps - Install LS $  2,660.00 1.00 $ 2,660.00 1.00 $ 2,660.00 | $
5-21 RAS - 20"/16" RAS Pipe (Influent) LS $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 | $
5-22 RAS - Misc Metals - Deliver LS $ 46,550.00 1.00 $ 46,550.00 1.00 $ 46,550.00 | $
5-23 RAS - Misc Metals - Install LS $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 | $
5-24 RAS - Coatings LS $ 53,200.00 1.00 $ 53,200.00 1.00 $ 53,200.00 | $
5-25 RAS - RPS Start Up & Test LS $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 | $
6 Mixed Liquor Flumes No. 5 & 6
6-1 FLU - Excavate/Rock Subgrade LS $ 99,750.00 1.00 $ 99,750.00 1.00 $ 99,750.00 | $
6-2 FLU - F&P Slab @87 LS $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 | $
6-3 FLU - F&P Walls to 97 LS $ 26,600.00 1.00 $ 26,600.00 1.00 $ 26,600.00 | $
6-4 FLU - Backfill to 97 LS $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 | $
6-5 FLU - Slab @ 99.0 F&P LS $  6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 | $
6-6 FLU - Walls to 105.2 F & P LS $ 26,600.00 1.00 $ 26,600.00 1.00 $ 26,600.00 | $
6-7 FLU - Parshall Flumes - Deliver LS $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 | $
6-8 FLU - Parshall Flume - Place & Grout LS $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 | $
6-9 FLU - Deliver Misc Metals LS $ 33,250.00 1.00 $ 33,250.00 1.00 $ 33,250.00 | $
6-10 FLU - Install Grating LS $ 3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 | $
6-11 FLU - Install Platform and Guardrail LS $  6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 | $
6-12 FLU - Weir Gates - Deliver LS $ 26,600.00 1.00 $ 26,600.00 1.00 $ 26,600.00 | $
6-13 FLU - Weir Gates - Install LS $  6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 | $
6-14 FLU - Startup LS $ 3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 | $
7 Biotower Modification
7-1 BIO - Demo - Electrical LS $  6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 | $
7-2 BIO - Demo - St Steel LS $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 | $
7-3 BIO - Conc Pedestals F&P LS $  6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 | $
7-4 BIO - Biotower Struct. Steel - Deliver LS $ 99,750.00 1.00 $ 99,750.00 1.00 $ 99,750.00 | $
7-5 BIO - Struct Steel - Erect LS $ 39,900.00 1.00 $ 39,900.00 1.00 $ 39,900.00 | $
7-6 BIO - Struct Steel - Paint LS $ 33,250.00 1.00 $ 33,250.00 1.00 $ 33,250.00 | $
7-7 BIO- Trolly-Hoist - Deliver LS $ 66,500.00 1.00 $ 66,500.00 1.00 $ 66,500.00 | $
7-8 BIO - Trolley-Hoist - Install LS $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 | $
7-9 BIO - Trolley-Hoist - Startup LS $  3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 | $
8 Aeration Basin 1 Modifications
8-1 AB 1 - Demo-Mech Aeration System LS $ 141,250.00 1.00 $ 141,250.00 1.00 $ 141,250.00 | $
8-2 AB 1 - Demo-Concrete Walkaways, LS $ 107,500.00 1.00 $ 107,500.00 1.00 $ 107,500.00 | $
Columns
8-3 AB 1 - Demo-Concrete Slabs LS $ 97,250.00 1.00 $ 97,250.00 1.00 $ 97,250.00 | $
8-4 AB 1 - Exc & 12" AB Subgrade LS $ 46,000.00 1.00 $ 46,000.00 1.00 $ 46,000.00 | $
8-5 AB 1 - F&P Bottom Slab #1 LS $ 33,250.00 1.00 $ 33,250.00 1.00 $ 33,250.00 | $
8-6 AB 1 - F&P Bottom Slab #2 LS $ 24,250.00 1.00 $ 24,250.00 1.00 $ 24,250.00 | $
8-7 AB 1- 36" FE Elbow LS $ 7,750.00 1.00 $ 7,750.00 1.00 $ 7,750.00 | $
8-8 AB 1 - F&P Slope Slabs LS $ 35,250.00 1.00 $ 35,250.00 1.00 $ 35,250.00 | $
8-9 AB 1 - F&P Walls #1 LS $ 43,000.00 1.00 $ 43,000.00 1.00 $ 43,000.00 | $

PAGE 4 OF 11




8-10 AB 1- F&P Walls #2 LS $ 43,000.00 1.00 $ 43,000.00 1.00 $ 43,000.00 | $
8-11 AB 1- F&P Walls #3 LS $ 43,000.00 1.00 $ 43,000.00 1.00 $ 43,000.00 | $
8-12 AB 1- F&P Valley Gutter to Mud Valve LS $ 2,660.00 1.00 $ 2,660.00 1.00 $ 2,660.00 | $
8-13 AB 1- Install 8" Basin Drain Mud Valve LS $  1,995.00 1.00 $ 1,995.00 1.00 $ 1,995.00 | $
8-14 AB 1 - F&P Walkways LS $ 46,550.00 1.00 $ 46,550.00 1.00 $ 46,550.00 | $
8-15 AB 1 - Deliver Misc Metals LS $ 79,800.00 1.00 $ 79,800.00 1.00 $ 79,800.00 | $
8-16 AB 1 - Install Platforms LS $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 | $
8-17 AB 1 - Install Conduit Bridge LS $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 | $
8-18 AB 1 - Install Misc Metals / Handrail LS $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 | $
8-19 AB 1 - Deliver SST AA Pipe / Valves / LS $ 66,500.00 1.00 $ 66,500.00 1.00 $ 66,500.00 | $
Supports
8-20 AB 1 - Install SST AA Pipe / Valves / LS $ 26,600.00 1.00 $ 26,600.00 1.00 $ 26,600.00 | $
Supports
8-21 AB 1 - Deliver Propeller Pumps / Thimbles LS $ 86,450.00 1.00 $ 86,450.00 1.00 $ 86,450.00 | $
8-22 AB 1 - Install Propeller Pumps / Thimbles LS $ 5,320.00 1.00 $ 5,320.00 1.00 $ 5,320.00 | $
8-23 AB 1 - Deliver Submersible Mixers LS $ 99,750.00 1.00 $ 99,750.00 1.00 $ 99,750.00 | $
8-24 AB 1 - Install Submersible Mixers LS $ 5,320.00 1.00 $ 5,320.00 1.00 $ 5,320.00 | $
8-25 AB 1 - Fine Bubble Aeration -Deliver LS $ 139,650.00 1.00 $ 139,650.00 1.00 $ 139,650.00 | $
8-26 AB 1 - Fine Bubble Aeration - Install LS $ 39,900.00 1.00 $ 39,900.00 1.00 $ 39,900.00 | $
8-27 AB 1 - Flap Gate Deliver LS $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 | $
8-28 AB 1 - Flap Gate Install LS $ 1,330.00 1.00 $ 1,330.00 1.00 $ 1,330.00 | $
8-29 AB 1 - Startup LS $  3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 | $
9 Aeration Basin 2 Modifications
9-1 AB 2 - Demo-Mech Aeration System LS $ 141,250.00 1.00 $ 141,250.00 1.00 $ 141,250.00 | $
9-2 AB 2 - Demo-Concrete Walkaways, LS $ 107,500.00 1.00 $ 107,500.00 1.00 $ 107,500.00 | $
Columns
9-3 AB 2 - Demo-Concrete Slabs LS $ 97,250.00 1.00 $ 97,250.00 1.00 $ 97,250.00 | $
9-4 AB 2 - Exc & 12" AB Subgrade LS $ 46,000.00 1.00 $ 46,000.00 1.00 $ 46,000.00 | $
9-5 AB 2 - F&P Bottom Slab #1 LS $ 33,250.00 1.00 $ 33,250.00 1.00 $ 33,250.00 | $
9-6 AB 2 - F&P Bottom Slab #2 LS $  24,250.00 1.00 $ 24,250.00 1.00 $ 24,250.00 | $
9-7 AB 2- 36" FE Elbow LS $ 7,750.00 1.00 $ 7,750.00 1.00 $ 7,750.00 | $
9-8 AB 2 - F&P Slope Slabs LS $ 35,250.00 1.00 $ 35,250.00 1.00 $ 35,250.00 | $
9-9 AB 2 - F&P Walls #1 LS $ 43,000.00 1.00 $ 43,000.00 1.00 $ 43,000.00 | $
9-10 AB 2 - F&P Walls #2 LS $ 43,000.00 1.00 $ 43,000.00 1.00 $ 43,000.00 | $
9-11 AB 2 - F&P Walls #3 LS $ 43,000.00 1.00 $ 43,000.00 1.00 $ 43,000.00 | $
9-12 AB 2- F&P Valley Gutter to Mud Valve LS $  2,660.00 1.00 $ 2,660.00 1.00 $ 2,660.00 | $
9-13 AB 2- Install 8" Basin Drain Mud Valve LS $  1,995.00 1.00 $ 1,995.00 1.00 $ 1,995.00 | $
9-14 AB 2 - F&P Weir Closure Wall LS $  3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 | $
9-15 AB 2 - F&P Walkways LS $ 46,550.00 1.00 $ 46,550.00 1.00 $ 46,550.00 | $
9-16 AB 2 - Deliver Misc Metals LS $ 79,800.00 1.00 $ 79,800.00 1.00 $ 79,800.00 | $
9-17 AB 2 - Install Platforms LS $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 | $
9-18 AB 2 - Install Conduit Bridge LS $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 | $
9-19 AB 2 - Install Misc Metals / Handrail LS $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 | $
9-20 AB 2 - Deliver SST AA Pipe / Valves / LS $ 66,500.00 1.00 $ 66,500.00 1.00 $ 66,500.00 | $
Supports

PAGE 5 OF 11




9-21 AB 2 - Install SST AA Pipe / Valves / LS $ 26,600.00 1.00 $ 26,600.00 1.00 $ 26,600.00 | $
Supports
9-22 AB 2 - Deliver Propeller Pumps / Thimbles LS $ 86,450.00 1.00 $ 86,450.00 1.00 $ 86,450.00 | $
9-23 AB 2 - Install Propeller Pumps / Thimbles LS $ 5,320.00 1.00 $ 5,320.00 1.00 $ 5,320.00 | $
9-24 AB 2 - Deliver Submersible Mixers LS $ 99,750.00 1.00 $ 99,750.00 1.00 $ 99,750.00 | $
9-25 AB 2 - Install Submersible Mixers LS $ 5,320.00 1.00 $ 5,320.00 1.00 $ 5,320.00 | $
9-26 AB 2 - Fine Bubble Aeration -Deliver LS $ 139,650.00 1.00 $ 139,650.00 1.00 $ 139,650.00 | $
9-27 AB 2 - Fine Bubble Aeration - Install LS $ 39,900.00 1.00 $ 39,900.00 1.00 $ 39,900.00 | $
9-28 AB 2 - Flap Gate Deliver LS $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 | $
9-29 AB 2 - Flap Gate Install LS $ 1,330.00 1.00 $ 1,330.00 1.00 $ 1,330.00 | $
9-30 AB 2 - Startup LS $  3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 | $
10 Aeration Basin 3 Modifications
10-1 AB 3 - Demo-Mech Aeration System LS $ 141,250.00 1.00 $ 141,250.00 1.00 $ 141,250.00 | $
10-2 AB 3 - Demo-Concrete Walkaways, LS $ 107,500.00 1.00 $ 107,500.00 1.00 $ 107,500.00 | $
Columns
10-3 AB 3 - Demo-Concrete Slabs LS $ 97,250.00 1.00 $ 97,250.00 1.00 $ 97,250.00 | $
10-4 AB 3 - Exc & 12" AB Subgrade LS $ 46,000.00 1.00 $ 46,000.00 1.00 $ 46,000.00 | $
10-5 AB 3 - F&P Bottom Slab #1 LS $ 33,250.00 1.00 $ 33,250.00 1.00 $ 33,250.00 | $
10-6 AB 3 - F&P Bottom Slab #2 LS $  24,250.00 1.00 $ 24,250.00 1.00 $ 24,250.00 | $
10-7 AB 3- 36" FE Elbow LS $ 7,750.00 1.00 $ 7,750.00 1.00 $ 7,750.00 | $
10-8 AB 3 - F&P Slope Slabs LS $ 35,250.00 1.00 $ 35,250.00 1.00 $ 35,250.00 | $
10-9 AB 3 - F&P Walls #1 LS $ 43,000.00 1.00 $ 43,000.00 1.00 $ 43,000.00 | $
10-10 [ AB 3 - F&P Walls #2 LS $ 43,000.00 1.00 $ 43,000.00 1.00 $ 43,000.00 | $
10-11 [ AB3- F&P Walls #3 LS $ 43,000.00 1.00 $ 43,000.00 1.00 $ 43,000.00 | $
10-12 | AB 3- F&P Valley Gutter to Mud Valve LS $  2,660.00 1.00 $ 2,660.00 1.00 $ 2,660.00 | $
10-13 [ AB 3- Install 8" Basin Drain Mud Valve LS $  1,995.00 1.00 $ 1,995.00 1.00 $ 1,995.00 | $
10-14 | AB 3 - F&P Weir Closure Wall LS $  3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 | $
10-15 | AB 3 - F&P Walkways LS $ 46,550.00 1.00 $ 46,550.00 1.00 $ 46,550.00 | $
10-16 [ AB 3 - Deliver Misc Metals LS $ 79,800.00 1.00 $ 79,800.00 1.00 $ 79,800.00 | $
10-17 | AB 3 - Install Platforms LS $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 | $
10-18 [ AB 3 - Install Conduit Bridge LS $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 | $
10-19 [ AB 3 - Install Misc Metals / Handrail LS $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 | $
10-20 | AB 3 - Deliver SST AA Pipe / Valves / LS $ 66,500.00 1.00 $ 66,500.00 1.00 $ 66,500.00 | $
Supports
10-21 | AB 3 - Install SST AA Pipe / Valves / LS $ 26,600.00 1.00 $ 26,600.00 1.00 $ 26,600.00 | $
Supports
10-22 | AB 3 - Deliver Propeller Pumps / Thimbles LS $ 86,450.00 1.00 $ 86,450.00 1.00 $ 86,450.00 | $
10-23 | AB 3 - Install Propeller Pumps / Thimbles LS $ 5,320.00 1.00 $ 5,320.00 1.00 $ 5,320.00 | $
10-24 | AB 3 - Deliver Submersible Mixers LS $ 99,750.00 1.00 $ 99,750.00 1.00 $ 99,750.00 | $
10-25 | AB 3 - Install Submersible Mixers LS $ 5,320.00 1.00 $ 5,320.00 1.00 $ 5,320.00 | $
10-26 [ AB 3 - Fine Bubble Aeration -Deliver LS $ 139,650.00 1.00 $ 139,650.00 1.00 $ 139,650.00 | $
10-27 | AB 3 - Fine Bubble Aeration - Install LS $ 39,900.00 1.00 $ 39,900.00 1.00 $ 39,900.00 | $
10-28 | AB 3 - Flap Gate Deliver LS $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 | $
10-29 | AB 3 - Flap Gate Install LS $ 1,330.00 1.00 $ 1,330.00 1.00 $ 1,330.00 | $

PAGE 6 OF 11




10-30 [ AB 3 - Startup LS $  3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 | $
11 Aeration Basins 4 & 5 Modifications
11-1 AB 4/5 - Demo-Aeration System LS $ 217,500.00 1.00 $ 217,500.00 1.00 $ 217,500.00 | $
11-2 AB 4/5 - Demo-Walls for Pumps LS $ 14,250.00 1.00 $ 14,250.00 1.00 $ 14,250.00 | $
11-3 AB 4/5 - F&P Walls #1 LS $ 43,500.00 1.00 $ 43,500.00 1.00 $ 43,500.00 | $
11-4 AB 4/5 - F&P Walls #2 LS $ 43,500.00 1.00 $ 43,500.00 1.00 $ 43,500.00 | $
11-5 AB 4/5 - F&P Walls #3 LS $ 43,500.00 1.00 $ 43,500.00 1.00 $ 43,500.00 | $
11-6 AB 4/5 - Demo-Pump Openings LS $  2,900.00 1.00 $ 2,900.00 1.00 $ 2,900.00 | $
11-7 AB 4/5 - Flap Gates - Deliver LS $ 39,900.00 1.00 $ 39,900.00 1.00 $ 39,900.00 | $
11-8 AB 4/5 - Flap Gates - Install LS $ 2,660.00 1.00 $ 2,660.00 1.00 $ 2,660.00 | $
11-9 AB 4/5 - Mixers - Deliver LS $ 199,500.00 1.00 $ 199,500.00 1.00 $ 199,500.00 | $
11-10 | AB 4/5 - Mixers - Install LS $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 | $
11-11 | AB 4/5 - Deliver SST AA Pipe / Supports LS $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 | $
11-12 | AB 4/5 - Install SST AA Pipe / Supports LS $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 | $
11-13 | AB 4/5 - Aeration Header & Difusers - LS $ 279,300.00 1.00 $ 279,300.00 1.00 $ 279,300.00 | $
Deliver
11-14 | AB 4/5 - Aeration Header & Difusers - Install LS $ 79,800.00 1.00 $ 79,800.00 1.00 $ 79,800.00 | $
11-15 | AB 4/5 - Deliver Propeller Pumps / Thimbles LS $ 172,900.00 1.00 $ 172,900.00 1.00 $ 172,900.00 | $
11-16 | AB 4/5 - Install Propeller Pumps / Thimbles LS $ 10,640.00 1.00 $ 10,640.00 1.00 $ 10,640.00 | $
11-17 | AB 4/5 - Flap Gate Deliver LS $ 39,900.00 1.00 $ 39,900.00 1.00 $ 39,900.00 | $
11-18 | AB 4/5 - Flap Gate Install LS $ 2,660.00 1.00 $ 2,660.00 1.00 $ 2,660.00 | $
11-19 [ AB 4/5 - Startup LS $ 3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 | $
12 Aeration Basins 6 & 7 Modifications
12-1 AB 6/7 - Demo-Aeration System LS $ 217,500.00 1.00 $ 217,500.00 1.00 $ 217,500.00 | $
12-2 AB 6/7 - Demo-Walls for Pumps LS $ 14,250.00 1.00 $ 14,250.00 1.00 $ 14,250.00 | $
12-3 AB 6/7 - F&P Walls #1 LS $ 43,500.00 1.00 $ 43,500.00 1.00 $ 43,500.00 | $
12-4 AB 6/7 - F&P Walls #2 LS $ 43,500.00 1.00 $ 43,500.00 1.00 $ 43,500.00 | $
12-5 AB 6/7 - F&P Walls #3 LS $ 43,500.00 1.00 $ 43,500.00 1.00 $ 43,500.00 | $
12-6 AB 6/7 - Demo-Pump Openings LS $  2,900.00 1.00 $ 2,900.00 1.00 $ 2,900.00 | $
12-7 AB 6/7 - Flap Gates - Deliver LS $ 39,900.00 1.00 $ 39,900.00 1.00 $ 39,900.00 | $
12-8 AB 6/7 - Flap Gates - Install LS $ 2,660.00 1.00 $ 2,660.00 1.00 $ 2,660.00 | $
12-9 AB 6/7 - Mixers - Deliver LS $ 199,500.00 1.00 $ 199,500.00 1.00 $ 199,500.00 | $
12-10 | AB 6/7 - Mixers - Install LS $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 | $
12-11 | AB 6/7 - Deliver SST AA Pipe / Supports LS $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 1.00 $ 19,950.00 | $
12-12 | AB6/7 - Install SST AA Pipe / Supports LS $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 1.00 $ 6,650.00 | $
12-13 | AB 6/7 - Aeration Header & Difusers - LS $ 279,300.00 1.00 $ 279,300.00 1.00 $ 279,300.00 | $
Deliver
12-14 | AB 6/7 - Aeration Header & Difusers - Install LS $ 79,800.00 1.00 $ 79,800.00 1.00 $ 79,800.00 | $
12-15 | AB 6/7 - Deliver Propeller Pumps / Thimbles LS $ 172,900.00 1.00 $ 172,900.00 1.00 $ 172,900.00 | $
12-16 | AB 6/7 - Install Propeller Pumps / Thimbles LS $ 10,640.00 1.00 $ 10,640.00 1.00 $ 10,640.00 | $

PAGE 7 OF 11




12-17 | AB 6/7 - Flap Gate Deliver LS $ 39,900.00 1.00 $ 39,900.00 1.00 $ 39,900.00 | $
12-18 | AB 6/7 - Flap Gate Install LS $ 2,660.00 1.00 $ 2,660.00 1.00 3 2,660.00 | $
12-19 | AB 6/7 - Startup LS $ 3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 1.00 $ 3,325.00 | $

13  |Electrical and Instrumentation 0 $ - 0.00 $ - 0.00 $ - $
13-1 Moblization LS $ 30,000.00 1.00 $ 30,000.00 1.00 $ 30,000.00 | $
13-2 Duct Bank - A Trench, Install, Backfill LS $ 49,500.00 1.00 $ 49,500.00 1.00 $ 49,500.00 | $
13-3 Duct Bank - A Wire LS $ 10,500.00 1.00 $ 10,500.00 1.00 $ 10,500.00 | $
13-4 Duct Bank - B Trench, Install, Backfill LS $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 | $
13-5 Duct Bank - B Wire LS $ 1,400.00 1.00 $ 1,400.00 1.00 $ 1,400.00 | $
13-6 Duct Bank - C,E,G Trench, Install, Backfill LS $ 47,000.00 1.00 $ 47,000.00 1.00 $ 47,000.00 | $
13-7 Duct Bank - CE,G Wire LS $ 5,800.00 1.00 $ 5,800.00 1.00 $ 5,800.00 | $
13-8 Duct Bank - D Trench, Install, Backfill LS $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 | $
13-9 Duct Bank - D Wire LS $ 1,400.00 1.00 $ 1,400.00 1.00 $ 1,400.00 | $
13-10 Duct Bank - F Trench, Install, Backfill LS $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 | $
13-11 Duct Bank - F Wire LS $ 1,400.00 1.00 $ 1,400.00 1.00 $ 1,400.00 | $
13-12 Duct Bank - G1,] Trench, Install, Backfill LS $ 98,000.00 1.00 $ 98,000.00 1.00 $ 98,000.00 | $
13-13 | Duct Bank - G1,I Wire LS $ 26,000.00 1.00 $ 26,000.00 1.00 $ 26,000.00 | $
13-14 Duct Bank - H Trench, Install, Backfill LS $ 18,600.00 1.00 $ 18,600.00 1.00 $ 18,600.00 | $
13-15 | DuctBank -H Wire LS $ 1,400.00 1.00 $ 1,400.00 1.00 $ 1,400.00 | $
13-16 Duct Bank - J Trench, Install, Backfill LS $ 18,600.00 1.00 $ 18,600.00 1.00 $ 18,600.00 | $
13-17 | DuctBank - J Wire LS $ 1,400.00 1.00 $ 1,400.00 1.00 $ 1,400.00 | $
13-18 Duct Bank - K;M Trench, Install, Backfill LS $ 68,300.00 1.00 $ 68,300.00 1.00 $ 68,300.00 | $
13-19 | Duct Bank - K,M Wire LS $ 14,100.00 1.00 $ 14,100.00 1.00 $ 14,100.00 | $
13-20 Duct Bank - N Trench, Install, Backfill LS $ 60,800.00 1.00 $ 60,800.00 1.00 $ 60,800.00 | $
13-21 Duct Bank - N Wire LS $  3,900.00 1.00 $ 3,900.00 1.00 $ 3,900.00 | $
13-22 Duct Bank - L Trench, Install, Backfill LS $ 18,600.00 1.00 $ 18,600.00 1.00 $ 18,600.00 | $
13-23 | DuctBank - L Wire LS $ 1,400.00 1.00 $ 1,400.00 1.00 $ 1,400.00 | $
13-24 Duct Bank - U Trench, Install, Backfill LS $ 46,500.00 1.00 $ 46,500.00 1.00 $ 46,500.00 | $
13-25 | Duct Bank - U Wire LS $ 11,600.00 1.00 $ 11,600.00 1.00 $ 11,600.00 | $
13-26 Duct Bank - Q,R Trench, Install, Backfill LS $ 104,000.00 1.00 $ 104,000.00 1.00 $ 104,000.00 | $
13-27 | Duct Bank - Q,R Wire LS $ 29,500.00 1.00 $ 29,500.00 1.00 $ 29,500.00 | $
13-28 Duct Bank - O Trench, Install, Backfill LS $ 59,700.00 1.00 $ 59,700.00 1.00 $ 59,700.00 | $
13-29 | DuctBank - O Wire LS $ 15,400.00 1.00 $ 15,400.00 1.00 $ 15,400.00 | $

PAGE 8 OF 11




13-30 | Aeration Basin-1  Conduit & Pullbox LS $ 110,300.00 1.00 $ 110,300.00 1.00 $ 110,300.00 | $
Installation

13-31 | AerationBasin-1 Wire LS $ 24,500.00 1.00 $ 24,500.00 1.00 $ 24,500.00 | $

13-32 | Aeration Basin-2 Conduit & Pullbox LS $ 110,300.00 1.00 $ 110,300.00 1.00 $ 110,300.00 | $
Installation

13-33 | AerationBasin-2 Wire LS $ 24,500.00 1.00 $ 24,500.00 1.00 $ 24,500.00 | $

13-34 | Aeration Basin-3 Conduit & Pullbox LS $ 110,300.00 1.00 $ 110,300.00 1.00 $ 110,300.00 | $
Installation

13-35 | Aeration Basin-3 Wire LS $ 24,500.00 1.00 $ 24,500.00 1.00 $ 24,500.00 | $

13-36 | Aeration Basin-4  Conduit & Pullbox LS $ 76,950.00 1.00 $ 76,950.00 1.00 $ 76,950.00 | $
Installation

13-37 | Aeration Basin-4 Wire LS $ 16,500.00 1.00 $ 16,500.00 1.00 $ 16,500.00 | $

13-38 | Aeration Basin-5 Conduit & Pullbox LS $ 76,950.00 1.00 $ 76,950.00 1.00 $ 76,950.00 | $
Installation

13-39 | AerationBasin-5 Wire LS $ 16,500.00 1.00 $ 16,500.00 1.00 $ 16,500.00 | $

13-40 | Aeration Basin-6 Conduit & Pullbox LS $ 76,950.00 1.00 $ 76,950.00 1.00 $ 76,950.00 | $
Installation

13-41 | Aeration Basin-6 Wire LS $ 16,500.00 1.00 $ 16,500.00 1.00 $ 16,500.00 | $

13-42 | Aeration Basin-7  Conduit & Pullbox LS $ 76,950.00 1.00 $ 76,950.00 1.00 $ 76,950.00 | $
Installation

13-43 | AerationBasin-7 Wire LS $ 16,500.00 1.00 $ 16,500.00 1.00 $ 16,500.00 | $

13-44 | MCC 8 Installation & Above Ground Conduit LS $ 19,100.00 1.00 $ 19,100.00 1.00 $ 19,100.00 | $

13-45 | MCC 8 Wire LS $  9,000.00 1.00 $ 9,000.00 1.00 $ 9,000.00 | $

13-46 | Mixed Liquor Flume Above Ground Conduit LS $ 13,600.00 1.00 $ 13,600.00 1.00 $ 13,600.00 | $

13-47 | Mixed Liquor Flume Wire LS $  2,000.00 1.00 $ 2,000.00 1.00 $ 2,000.00 | $

13-48 | Filter Pump Station Above Ground Conduit LS $ 13,600.00 1.00 $ 13,600.00 1.00 $ 13,600.00 | $

13-49 | Filter Pump Station Wire LS $  2,000.00 1.00 $ 2,000.00 1.00 $ 2,000.00 | $

13-50 | Secondary Clarifier #5 Above Ground LS $ 40,800.00 1.00 $ 40,800.00 1.00 $ 40,800.00 | $
Conduit

13-51 | Secondary Clarifier #5 Wire LS $  4,000.00 1.00 $ 4,000.00 1.00 $ 4,000.00 | $

13-52 | RAS Pump Station #2 Above Ground LS $ 40,800.00 1.00 $ 40,800.00 1.00 $ 40,800.00 | $
Conduit

13-53 | RAS Pump Station #2 Wire LS $ 5,000.00 1.00 $ 5,000.00 1.00 $ 5,000.00 | $

13-54 | Electrical Building #7 Above Ground LS $ 21,400.00 1.00 $ 21,400.00 1.00 $ 21,400.00 | $
Conduit

13-55 | Electrical Building #7 Wire LS $  4,000.00 1.00 $ 4,000.00 1.00 $ 4,000.00 | $

13-56 | MCC 8 LS $ 550,000.00 1.00 $ 550,000.00 1.00 $ 550,000.00 | $

13-57 | Remaining Electrical Gear Package LS $ 282,200.00 1.00 $ 282,200.00 1.00 $ 282,200.00 | $

13-58 [ Concrete Pullboxes LS $ 70,600.00 1.00 $ 70,600.00 1.00 $ 70,600.00 | $

13-59 | Tesco LCPs: Basin 1 LS $ 33,000.00 1.00 $ 33,000.00 1.00 $ 33,000.00 | $

13-60 [ Tesco LCPs: Basin 2 LS $ 33,000.00 1.00 $ 33,000.00 1.00 $ 33,000.00 | $

13-61 | Tesco LCPs: Basin 3 LS $ 33,000.00 1.00 $ 33,000.00 1.00 $ 33,000.00 | $

13-62 | Tesco LCPs: Basin 4 LS $ 33,000.00 1.00 $ 33,000.00 1.00 $ 33,000.00 | $

13-63 | Tesco LCPs: Basin 5 LS $ 33,000.00 1.00 $ 33,000.00 1.00 $ 33,000.00 | $

13-64 | Tesco LCPs: Basin 6 LS $ 33,000.00 1.00 $ 33,000.00 1.00 $ 33,000.00 | $

PAGE 9 OF 11




13-65 | Tesco LCPs: Basin 7 LS $ 33,000.00 1.00 $ 33,000.00 1.00 $ 33,000.00 [ $ -
13-66 | Tesco LCPs: Clarifier 5 LS $ 22,800.00 1.00 $ 22,800.00 1.00 $ 22,800.00 | $ -
13-67 | Tesco LCps: RAS Pump Station LS $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 1.00 $ 13,300.00 | $ -
13-68 | Tesco Instrumentation: Basin 1 LS $ 13,900.00 1.00 $ 13,900.00 1.00 $ 13,900.00 | $ -
13-69 | Tesco Instrumentation: Basin 2 LS $ 13,900.00 1.00 $ 13,900.00 1.00 $ 13,900.00 | $ -
13-70 | Tesco Instrumentation: Basin 3 LS $ 13,900.00 1.00 $ 13,900.00 1.00 $ 13,900.00 | $ -
13-71 Tesco Instrumentation: Basin 4 LS $ 13,900.00 1.00 $ 13,900.00 1.00 $ 13,900.00 | $ -
13-72 | Tesco Instrumentation: Basin 5 LS $ 13,900.00 1.00 3 13,900.00 1.00 $ 13,900.00 | $ -
13-73 | Tesco Instrumentation: Basin 6 LS $ 13,900.00 1.00 $ 13,900.00 1.00 $ 13,900.00 | $ -
13-74 | Tesco Instrumentation: Basin 7 LS $ 13,900.00 1.00 $ 13,900.00 1.00 $ 13,900.00 | $ -
13-75 | Tesco Instrumentation: Mixed Liquor LS $ 4,500.00 1.00 $ 4,500.00 1.00 $ 4,500.00 [ $ -
Flumes
13-76 | Tesco Instrumentation: RAS Pump Station LS $ 29,200.00 1.00 $ 29,200.00 1.00 $ 29,200.00 | $ -
13-77 | Tesco Instrumentation:Clarifier 5 LS $ 9,500.00 1.00 $ 9,500.00 1.00 $ 9,500.00 | $ -
13-78 | Tesco: Portable Instrument Calibrator & LS $ 12,400.00 1.00 $ 12,400.00 1.00 $ 12,400.00 | $ -
Accessories
13-79 | Tesco: Submitals, Loop Drawings, Start-Up, LS $ 15,000.00 1.00 $ 15,000.00 1.00 $ 15,000.00 | $ -
Test, Training
13-80 | Bid ltem 3: HSQ Technologies LS $ 360,170.00 1.00 $ 360,170.00 1.00 $ 360,170.00 | $ -
SUB-TOTAL CONTRACT ITEMS = $ 18,068,000.00 $ 18,068,000.00 | $ -
CCO # |CHANGE ORDERS
1.1 |PCO 1 - Removal of asbestos cement pipe LS $ 4,125.06 1.00 $ 4,125.06 0.00 $ - $ 4,125.06
south of Clarifier No. 5
1.2 |PCO 4 - Disposal of excavated soil with TON $ 125.07| 5,000.00 |$ 625,350.00 0.00 $ - $ 625,350.00
elevated levels of lead
1.3 |PCO 11 - Clarifier No. 5 - Upgrade bridge LS $ 40,234.10 1.00 $ 40,234.10 0.00 $ - $ 40,234.10
and deck to stainless steel
1.4 |PCO 17 - Secondary Clarifier No. 1 Material LS $ 72,739.80 1.00 $ 72,739.80 0.00 $ - $ 72,739.80
1.5 |PCO 19 - Prepare and coat existing piping LS $ 7,719.77 1.00 $ 7,719.77 0.00 $ - $ 7,719.77
and appurtenances in Aeration Basins No. 4
and 5
2.1 |PCO 6 - Design Change 4 - RAS pump LS $ 219234 1.00 $ 2,192.34 0.00 $ - $ 2,192.34
station level instrument relocation
2.2 |PCO 8 - Grounding rods and boxes LS $ 7,372.76 1.00 $ 7,372.76 0.00 $ - $ 7,372.76
2.3 |[PCO 9 - Design Change 6 - Added conduits LS $ 1,926.07 1.00 $ 1,926.07 0.00 $ - $ 1,926.07
under MCC-8 enclosure
2.4 |PCO 12 - RFI 48 - Repairs in AB No. 2 at LS $ 65,623.86 1.00 $ 65,623.86 0.00 $ - $ 65,623.86
cold joint
2.5 [PCO 13 - Pipe Support Material and AA flex LS $ 11,917.80 1.00 $ 11,917.80 0.00 $ - $ 11,917.80
couplings
2.6 |PCO 16 - Design Change 12 - LS $ 15,282.10 1.00 $ 15,282.10 0.00 $ - $ 15,282.10
Conductor/Conduit changes for AB 1-3
2.7 PCO 18 - Design Change 11 - REXA LS $ 3,384.36 1.00 $ 3,384.36 0.00 $ - $ 3,384.36

actuator breaker and conductors

PAGE 10 OF 11




2.8 PCO 27 - Additional lead offhaul TON $ 125.07 1,592.53 $ 199,177.73 0.00 $ - $ 199,177.73

3.1 PCO 2 - Mixed liquor pipe per DC No. 2 LS $ 25,568.95 1.00 $ 25,568.95 0.00 $ - $ 25,568.95

3.2 |PCO 7 - Mud valve installation in aeration LS $ 6,325.84 1.00 $ 6,325.84 0.00 $ - $ 6,325.84
basin no. 2

3.3 |PCO 14 - Covering of contaminated piles LS $ 27,419.32 1.00 $ 27,419.32 0.00 $ - $ 27,419.32

3.4 |PCO 15 - Flume 5/6 modifications LS $ 33,344.45 1.00 $ 33,344.45 0.00 $ - $ 33,344.45

3.5 |PCO 20 - DC 13 - Thickened walls at RAS LS $ 7,530.73 1.00 $ 7,530.73 0.00 $ - $ 7,530.73
Pipe Penetrations

3.6 |PCO 23 - Scum line piping changes LS $ (12,384.58) 1.00 $ (12,384.58) 0.00 $ - $ (12,384.58)

3.7 |PCO 24 - Coating of owner-supplied actuator LS $ 589.05 1.00 $ 589.05 0.00 $ - $ 589.05
for AR A 7 cnlittar hane

3.8 PCO 26 - Installation of Clarifier No. 1 LS $ 165,960.67 1.00 $ 165,960.67 0.00 $ - $ 165,960.67
equipment

4 Global Settlement LS $ 25,000.00 1.00 $ 25,000.00 0.00 $ - $ 25,000.00

5.1 |PCO 25 - Kick Plate on Intermediate LS $ 5,204.25 1.00 $ 5,204.25 0.00 $ - $ 5,204.25
Landings at BB # 1 & 2, and EB #7

5.2 |PCO 29 - Annubar relocation per DC #16 and LS $ 23,885.53 1.00 $ 23,885.53 0.00 $ - $ 23,885.53
RFI| #67

5.3 |PCO 31 - RFI # 103 - Revised Platform LS $ 5,402.65 1.00 $ 5,402.65 0.00 $ - $ 5,402.65
Detail for Aeration Basins 1 & 3

5.4 |PCO 32- 1" SA Line Removal LS |$ (10,528.56) 1.00 $  (10,52856)| o000 [$ - |$  (10,528.56)

55 PCO 36 - 12 kV Ductbank Extension LS $ 90,719.06 1.00 $ 90,719.06 0.00 $ - $ 90,719.06

5.6 |PCO 37 - Drain Rock (Landscape Rock) LS $ 5,997.60 1.00 $ 5,997.60 0.00 $ - $ 5,997.60

5.7 PCO 28 - #5 Rebar Dowels in Basins 6/7 LS $  5741.21 1.00 $ 5,741.21 0.00 $ - $ 5,741.21

5.8 PCO 3-DC #1 - EJ in Basins 1-3 LS $ 17,379.88 1.00 $ 17,379.88 0.00 $ - $ 17,379.88

59 PCO 10 - RFI - 6 Dowel Spacing in Basin 4-7 LS $ 2,079.88 1.00 $ 2,079.88 0.00 $ - $ 2,079.88

5.1 |PCO 33-AB No. 3 - 8" mud valve demo and LS $ 7,281.28 1.00 $ 7,281.28 0.00 $ - $ 7,281.28
installation (RFI 5 & PCO 7)

5.11 |PCO 34 - RFI 48 - Cold Joint Repairs for AB LS $ 50,621.43 1.00 $ 50,621.43 0.00 $ - $ 50,621.43
1&3

5.12 |PCO 35 - Replace FRP Weir in AB #1 LS $ 3,083.39 1.00 $ 3,083.39 0.00 $ - $ 3,083.39

5.13 [PCO 38 - RAS Pump Opening Cover - DC LS $  1,176.90 1.00 $ 1,176.90 0.00 $ - $ 1,176.90
#18

6.1 |[PCO 40.2 - Final Miscellaneous Extra Work LS $ 53,741.53 1.00 $ 53,741.53 0.00 $ - $ 53,741.53

7.1 |PCO 051 - Modify Degritter #3 Installation LS $ 36,977.08 1.00 $ 36,977.08 0.00 $ - $ 36,977.08
SUB-TOTAL CHANGE ORDER ITEMS = $ 1,635,163.29 $ - $ 1,635163.29
TOTAL PROJECT = $ 19,703,163.28 $ 18,068,000.00 | $ 1,635,163.29

PAGE 11 OF 11




RECORDED AT THE REQUEST OF:
CITY OF TURLOCK

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:
CITY OF TURLOCK

Office of the City Clerk

156 S. Broadway, Suite 230
TURLOCK, CA 95380-5454

NOTICE OF COMPLETION
CITY PROJECT NO. 15-39C
TURLOCK REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL FACILITY
SECONDARY CLARIFIER NO. 5 AND DENITRIFICATION

Notice is hereby given that work on the above-referenced project located at the 901 S.
Walnut Road, Turlock, California 95380, was completed by the undersigned agency on
January 25, 2022. The contractor of work is CW Roen Construction Company, 40 Oak
Court, Danville, California 94526, and the owner is the City of Turlock, 156 South
Broadway, Suite 150, Turlock, California, 95380. Kindly refer to said Project Number on
all communications relating to this work.

Date:

(Signature- Gary L. Taylor, P.E., Acting City Engineer, Owner’s Agent),
City of Turlock

VERIFICATION
I, the undersigned, Acting City Engineer of the owner of the aforesaid interest, have read this
notice; | know and understand the contents thereof; and the facts stated therein are true of my
own knowledge.

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

CITY OF TURLOCK

GARY L. TAYLOR, P.E.
ACTING CITY ENGINEER
OWNER’'S AGENT

Executed on January 26, 2022, at Turlock, California, Stanislaus County



City Council Staff Report

January 25, 2022

6C

TURLOCK

From: Katie Quintero,

Deputy Director of Development Services / Planning Manager

Prepared by: Stephen Fremming, P.E., Principal Civil Engineer

Agendized by: Sarah Tamey Eddy, Interim City Manager

1. ACTION RECOMMENDED:

Motion: Approving Contract Change Order No. 2 in the amount of $81,126.01
(Fund 420) with Clark Bros., Inc., of Fresno, California, for City Project
No. 20-027 “City Wide Chlorination" bringing the contract total to

$4,374,881.51

2. SYNOPSIS:

This action approves Contract Change Order No. 2 for City Project No. 20-027 “City
Wide Chlorination” and it approves the necessary appropriation for the project.

3. DISCUSSION OF ISSUE:

On December 8, 2020, the City Council approved an agreement to Clark Bros., Inc.,
of Fresno, California for the construction of City Project No. 20-027 “City Wide
Chlorination." This project includes the addition of new disinfectant systems at
eighteen (18) wells and three (3) storage tanks within the City’s water system (21

sites total).

Contract Summary:

Change Order History Amount City Council Meeting
Original Contract $ 4,116,000.00 December 8, 2020
Change Order No. 1 $ 177,755.50 November 9, 2021
Change Order No. 2 $ 81,126.01 January 25, 2022

Adjusted Total Contract

$ 4,374,881.51

Contract Change Order No. 2 includes the following items of work that are out of scope of
the contract documents. All items have been reviewed and are recommended for approval
by the City’s firm providing hired design engineering and construction management services
for this project, Provost & Pritchard, as well as the City’s assigned project manager.


LSchimmelfennig
Text Box
6C


Agenda Staff Report
1/25/22
Page 2

Well Site 15 - Drainage Revisions - $15.748.12

The drain for the new chlorine analyzer was originally to be routed to an existing
unused meter vault however it was determined that this option would not be
viable for the required drainage needs. The only available drainage option was
to re-route the drainage to an existing drainage inlet located in the curb at the
street. In addition, additional drainage of the existing site in front of the Well 15
Building was requested by City Municipal Services staff to correct existing
problems. Work was completed on a time and materials basis.

Well Site 13 - Drainage and Security Fence Additions - $14,504.54

The drain for the new analyzer was originally to be routed to the street curb in
front of Well 13. Because the flow from the analyzer will be a continuous stream
while in operation, it was decided to install a dry well within the site to meet this
drainage need. This item also includes additional work to provide a continuous 6
foot high fence to improve security of the site, as there were segments where
the existing fencing was as low as 42 inches high.

Well Sites 20 & 22 - Added Valves on Discharge Headers - $17,911.69

The City requested that existing valves that were inoperable be replaced with
new valves at these two well sites. The work involving the installation of the new
valves at each site was completed on a time and materials basis.

Revised Radios for Local SCADA Panels - $19,819.50

The new local SCADA panels for the well and tank sites was originally required
to only operate on the City’s existing radio frequency for transmission of data
from the well site to the existing master control panel. As the City continues with
its migration from the current proprietary SCADA platform served by HSQ to the
new open source VTScada platform, it was noted there would be an overlay in
the time when both systems would be in operation. To minimize a potential
problem, it was decided to procure new radios for the upgraded panels to allow
for operation on the original radio frequency as well as via cellular radio to
minimize the potential of interference between the two systems. As such, the
new radios were revised to provide this capability.

Well 13 - Added Curb Along Canal Side of Pavement - $13,142.16

The existing grading for the new asphalt was originally designed to match the
existing dirt grades at the site. It was noted in the field that matching the existing
grade profiles would cause problems with the installation and appearance of the
new asphalt concrete pavement. It was decided to add an 18 inch curb along
the new pavement area and the canal to allow for a smoother installation of the
new pavement.



Agenda Staff Report
1/25/22
Page 3

BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION:

A. City Policy is the City Engineer is authorized to approve change orders up to 2%,
the City Manager is authorized to approve change orders up to 5%, and all other
change orders must be approved by the City Council.

B. Contract Change Order No. 2 is necessary to modify the contract value to reflect
the additions to the scope of work described herein.

FISCAL IMPACT / BUDGET AMENDMENT:
*NOTE - No General Fund money will be used for this project.

The designated project account number is 420-52-551.51367 “Chlorination of Well
Sites (21).” A 10% construction contract contingency in the amount of $411,600 was
identified at the time of the award of bid of the construction contract. Change Order
No. 1 and No. 2 total $258,881.51 and falls within the original 10% contingency
identified.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Recommend approval.

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Recommend approval.

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:

On December 8, 2020, the City Council adopted a Mitigated Negative Declaration

and Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Program for the project based on an Initial Study

submitted to the Stanislaus County Clerk submitted on November 3, 2020. No

additional environmental determination is needed at this time.

ALTERNATIVES:

A. Council could choose to not approve Contract Change Order No. 2. Staff does
not recommend this alternative as the additional work is necessary to modify

the contract value to reflect the additions to the scope of work described
herein.



CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER

Date issued: January 25, 2022 Change Order No.: 2

Project Name: City Wide Chlorination

Clark Bros., Inc. Project No.: 20-027
745 Broadway St Original Contract Amount: $4,116,000.00
Fresno, California 93721 Contract Award Date: 12/8/2020

(559) 272-8168

You are directed to make the following changes in this contract as requested by The City of Turlock:

ITEM Unit: Quantity: Unit Price: Total:
2.01 Well Site 15 - Drainage Revisions LS 1 $15,748.12 $15,748.12
(PR-006)
2.02 Well Site 13 - Drainage and Security LS 1 $14,504.54 $14,504.54
Fence Additions
(PR-009)
2.03 Well Sites 20 & 22 - Added Valves on LS 1 $17,911.69 $17,911.69
Discharge Headers
(PR-012)
2.04 Revised Radios for Local Scada Panels LS 1 $19,819.50 $19,819.50
(PR-015)
2.05 Well 13 - Added Curb Along Canal Side LS 1 $13,142.16 $13,142.16
of Pavement
(PR-023)
Total this CCO= $81,126.01
The original contract sum = $4,116,000.00
Net change by previous change orders = $177,755.50
The contract sum will increase in the amount of = $81,126.01

The new contract sum including this change order will be =

$4,374,881.51

The contract time will not be amended by this change order

Accepted:
Clark Bros., Inc., Contractor
Recommended:
Gary Taylor, P.E., Acting City Engineer
Approved:

Sarah Tamey Eddy, Interim City Manager

Date:

Date:

Date:




City Council Staff Report
January 25, 2022

&

Lo

TURLECK

From: Katie Quintero
Deputy Director of Development Services / Planning Manager
Prepared by: Randall Jones, Associate Engineer
Agendized by: Sarah Tamey Eddy, Interim City Manager
1. ACTION RECOMMENDED:
Motion: Awarding a Retainer Agreement with GHD, Inc. of San Luis Obispo,
California, for City Project No. 21-030 “RFQ for Traffic Engineering
Services” in an amount not to exceed $150,000 annually or $600,000
in total
2. SYNOPSIS:
This action will award a multi-year retainer agreement to one consulting firm to
provide traffic engineering services for the City of Turlock.
3. DISCUSSION OF ISSUE:

The City’s Engineering Division is responsible for providing engineering design and
oversight of designs produced by private engineering firms. The City Engineering
Division has limited ability to provide in-house design work due to reductions in
staffing levels, particularly as it pertains to traffic engineering studies. The City has
relied on consulting firms to provide traffic engineering studies and related
technical professional services in order to continue delivering capital
improvements and support development by private groups and individuals. The
preferred mechanism for soliciting services from consulting firms consist of a
process to advertise a Request for Qualifications (RFQ), select a number of firms
based on their demonstrated qualifications and experience, enter into a multi-year
retainer agreement with each firm, then solicit services for specific projects by way
of staff-issued Service Requests up to a not-to-exceed total cost as specified in
the retainer agreement. Retainer agreements provide the ability for staff to
promptly seek services without having to go through a formal Request for
Proposals (RFP), proposal review, and award process for each project or task
order.

City staff advertised an RFQ for traffic engineering services on September 29,
2021. On October 22, 2021, four (4) proposals were received in accordance with
the submission due date for City Project No. 21-030 “RFQ for Traffic Engineering



Agenda Staff Report
1/25/22
Page 2

Services.” City Engineering staff evaluated and ranked each proposal in
accordance with the guidelines of the RFQ and recommends approval of a retainer
agreement with one consultant. The table below lists the firms that submitted a
proposal as well as the one that is recommended for award of the retainer
agreement.

Recommended for
Award of Agreement

GHD, Inc. X
TJKM Transportation Consultants

Consulting Firm

Interwest Consulting Group

Minagar & Associates, Inc.

Staff is recommending a multi-year retainer agreement with GHD, Inc. with a term
of four (4) years expiring December 31, 2025, and an annual maximum
compensation amount not to exceed $150,000. Funds for traffic engineering
services will be paid for through the funding source of the various projects requiring
these services. Entering into a retainer agreement can provide faster response
times and mitigate project delays due to consultant availability.

BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION:

A) Pursuant to the Turlock Municipal Code, City Council approval of the
Agreement is required prior to execution of the contract with a consultant.

B) Retainer agreements provide staff with the ability to solicit services for various
projects without separately requesting, evaluating, and awarding agreements
for individual projects.

FISCAL IMPACT / BUDGET AMENDMENT:

Fiscal Impact: Not to exceed $150,000 annually over the term of the agreement,
expiring December 31, 2025. Funds for traffic engineering services will be paid for
through the funding source for the various projects requiring these services.

No General Funds will be used for this action.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Recommend approval.

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS:

Recommend approval.



Agenda Staff Report
1/25/22
Page 3

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:

In accordance with Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines this action does not
meet the definition of a project subject to CEQA. Therefore a determination is not

required for this action.

ALTERNATIVES:

A. Council could reject the award of the consultant agreement. Staff does not
recommend this alternative due to the fact that traffic engineering services are
necessary to deliver capital improvements for the City.



€ o

LY LYE

TURLOCK

[ L R T

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TURLOCK
and
GHD, INC.
for
TRAFFIC ENGINEERING SERVICES

City Project No. 21-030

THIS SERVICE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is entered into by and between the
CITY OF TURLOCK, a California municipal corporation (“City”), and GHD, INC.
(“Professional”), on this 25" day of January 2022 (the “Effective Date”). City and Professional
may be collectively referred to herein as the “Parties” or individually as “Party.” There are no
other parties to this Agreement.

RECITALS

A. City seeks to hire an independent contractor to perform professional services to
assist City with Project No. 21-030 “Traffic Engineering Services” (the “Project”™).

B. Professional has made a proposal to City to provide such professional services. A
description of the services Professional proposes to provide is included in the Scope of Services in
Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (“Services™). City desires to retain
Professional to perform the Services, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement.

C. The Parties have outlined the schedule or timeline for providing the Services
(“Completion Schedule”), which shall be included in the Scope of Services in Exhibit A.

D. The Parties have outlined the rates and method of payment to Professional for its
performance of the Services under this Agreement (“Compensation Schedule), which shall be
included in the Scope of Services in Exhibit A.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and covenants set forth below,
the Parties agree as follows:

CITY CONTRACT NO. 2022-58 1



AGREEMENT

1. Recitals. The recitals set forth above (“Recitals”) are true and correct and are hereby
incorporated into and made part of this Agreement by this reference. In the event of any
inconsistency between the Recitals and Section 1 through 51 of this Agreement, Sections 1 through
51 shall prevail.

2. Term. The term of this Agreement shall be four (4) years and will commence on the
Effective Date and terminate on the 31% day of December, 2025 (“Term”) unless the Parties
mutually agree in writing to terminate the Agreement earlier or extend the Term pursuant to this
Agreement.

3. Extension of Agreement. None

4. Effective Date. This Agreement shall only become effective once all of the Parties have
executed the Agreement (the “Effective Date™).

5. Work.

5.1.  Services. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement,
Professional shall provide City the Services described in Exhibit A and the specific services
delineated by the City Engineer in one or more written Service Requests submitted to Professional
during the Term. These Service Requests shall be numbered consecutively and attached to and
controlled by the terms of this Agreement. Each such Service Request shall set forth the exact
Services to be performed by Professional and the total compensation due Professional for such
Services. Professional must sign and return these Service Requests before undertaking the services
described therein. Any request for Services not included in Exhibit A will be considered a request
for additional or modified Services (“Modification” or “Modifications”). Professional shall not
receive additional compensation for any Modification of the Services unless the Parties agree
otherwise in a writing executed by both Parties.

5.2.  City Requested Modification of Services. City may, by written order, authorize
Modifications to the Services described in Exhibit A. If such Modifications cause an increase in
the cost or time required for performance of Professional’s Services, the Parties shall enter into a
written amendment to this Agreement to adjust the Services and the compensation to be paid to
Professional and, if necessary, amend the Completion Schedule or Compensation Schedule. The
Services, Completion Schedule, or Compensation Schedule shall not be revised unless City and
Professional mutually agree to a written amendment to this Agreement reflecting such revisions,
additional compensation, time for performance or such other terms or conditions mutually agreed
upon by the Parties.

5.3. Professional Requested Modification in Services. Professional shall not be

compensated for work outside the Services described in this Agreement, unless, prior to the
commencement of the Services:

CITY CONTRACT NO. 2022-58 2



(a) Professional provides City with written notice that specific work requested
by City or required to complete the Project is outside the agreed upon Services. Such notice shall:
(1) be supported by substantial evidence that the work is outside the Services; (2) set forth the
Professional’s proposed course of action for completing the work and a specific request for City
to approve the Modification to the Services; (3) set forth the Professional’s proposed revisions, if
any, to the Completion Schedule; and (4) set forth the Professional’s proposed revisions, if any, to
the Compensation Schedule; and

(b) City agrees that the work requires a Modification;

(©) City approves all adjustments, if any, to the Completion Schedule and
Compensation Schedule; and

(d) The Parties execute a written amendment to this Agreement describing any
Modification, together with any adjustment in the Completion Schedule and Compensation
Schedule for Professional’s work. Compensation for any additional Services shall not exceed Two
Hundred Eighty and No/100™ Dollars ($280.00) per hour.

6. Compensation.

6.1. Amount, Time and Manner of Payment for Professional Services. City shall
pay Professional according to the rates and timing set forth in the Compensation Schedule. On
each anniversary date of the Effective Date, Professional will be allowed to increase prices with
thirty (30) days’ written notice to City. Increases may not exceed increases in the San Francisco-
Oakland Consumer Price Index for all urban consumers or percentage increases in Professional’s
published prices, whichever is lower. In all cases, City may cancel this Agreement if a requested
price increase is not acceptable. City’s total compensation to Professional shall not exceed One
Hundred Fifty Thousand and No/100th Dollars ($150,000.00) annually (“Maximum Payment”),
or Six Hundred Thousand and No/100™ Dollars ($600,000.00) over the four-year (4) term of the
Agreement, unless the Parties mutually agree in writing otherwise.

6.2. Subsequent Payments. City shall make monthly payments in the amount invoiced
by Professional within thirty (30) calendar days of receiving such invoice. In the event that an
amount of an invoice is in dispute, City shall inform Professional of the amount and basis for the
dispute and may withhold the amount which is in dispute until the dispute has been resolved.

6.3. Invoices. Professional shall provide City with monthly invoices sufficiently
evidencing Professional’s expenses and completion of the Services. All invoices furnished to City
by Professional shall be in a form approved by City. The payments specified shall be the only
payments made to Professional for performance of the Services, including compensation for any
Modification. Professional shall submit all billings for Services to City within forty-five (45) days
of the performance of such Services. City shall issue payment according to City’s customary
procedures and practices for issuing payments to independent contractors.

CITY CONTRACT NO. 2022-58 3



7. Notice to Proceed. Professional shall not commence the performance of the Services until
it has been given notice by City (“Notice to Proceed”), with which City shall also deliver the
Deposit.

8. Time of Performance. Professional warrants that it will commence performance of the
Services within fourteen (14) calendar days of the date the agreement was executed and shall
conform to the Completion Schedule. The time of performance is a material term of this Agreement
relied on by City in entering into this Agreement.

9. Time and Personnel Devoted to Services. Professional shall devote such time and
personnel to the performance of this Agreement, as is necessary to perform the Services in
compliance with the Completion Schedule, Compensation Schedule, and this Agreement.

10.  Performance by Qualified Personnel; No Subcontracting. Services under this
Agreement shall be performed only by competent personnel under the supervision and direct
employment of Professional. Professional will conform with City’s reasonable requests regarding
assignment of personnel, but all personnel, including those assigned at City’s request, shall be
supervised by Professional. Professional is prohibited from subcontracting this Agreement or any
part of it unless such subcontracting is expressly approved by City in writing. Neither Party shall,
on the basis of this Agreement, contract on behalf of, or in the name of the other Party. An
agreement made in violation of this provision shall confer no rights on any Party and shall be null
and void.

11.  Representations of Professional. City relies upon the following representations by
Professional in entering into this Agreement:

11.1. Qualifications. Professional represents that it is qualified to perform the Services
provided in Exhibit A and that it possesses the necessary licenses and permits required to
perform the Services or will obtain such licenses or permits prior to the time such licenses or
permits are required. Professional shall also ensure that all subcontractors are similarly licensed
and qualified. Professional and all subcontractors shall also obtain a business license from City
before they commence performance of the Services. Professional represents and warrants to City
that Professional shall, at Professional's sole cost and expense, keep in effect or obtain at all
times during the Term of this Agreement, any licenses, permits, and approvals which are legally
required for Professional to practice Professional's profession at the time the Services are
rendered.

11.2. Professional Performance. Professional represents that all Services under this
Agreement shall be performed in a professional manner and shall conform to the customs and
standards of practice observed on similar, successfully completed projects by specialists in the
Services to be provided. Professional shall adhere to accepted professional standards as set forth
by relevant professional associations and shall perform all Services required under this Agreement
in a manner consistent with generally accepted professional customs, procedures and standards for
such Services. All work or products completed by Professional shall be completed using the best
practices available for the profession. Professional agrees that, if a Service is not so performed, in

CITY CONTRACT NO. 2022-58 4



addition to all of its obligations under this Agreement and at law, Professional shall re-perform or
replace unsatisfactory Service at no additional expense to City.

11.3. No Waiver of Claims. The granting of any progress payment by City, or the receipt
thereof by Professional, or any inspection, review, approval or oral statement by any representative
of City, or state certification shall not, in any way, waive, limit, or replace any certification or
approval procedures normally required or lessen the liability of Professional to re-perform or
replace unsatisfactory Service, including, but not limited to, cases where the unsatisfactory
character of such Service may not have been apparent or detected at the time of such payment,
inspection, review or approval.

11.4. City’s Remedies are Cumulative. Nothing in this Section shall constitute a waiver
or limitation of any right or remedy, whether in equity or at law, which City or Professional may
have under this Agreement or any applicable law. All rights and remedies of City, whether under
this Agreement or applicable law, shall be cumulative.

11.5. No Conflict of Interest. Professional represents that no conflict of interest will be
created under state or federal law by entering into or in carrying out this Agreement.

12. Conformity with Law and Safety. Professional shall observe and comply with all
applicable laws, ordinances, codes and regulations of governmental agencies, including federal,
state, municipal and local governing bodies having jurisdiction over any or all of the scope of
Services, including all provisions of the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1979 as amended,
all California Occupational Safety and Health Regulations, the California Building Code, the
Americans with Disabilities Act, any copyright, patent, or trademark law, and all other applicable
federal, state, municipal and local safety regulations, appropriate trade association safety
standards, and appropriate equipment manufacturer instructions. All Services performed by
Professional must be in accordance with these laws, ordinances, codes and regulations.
Professional’s failure to comply with any laws, ordinances, codes, or regulations applicable to the
performance of the Services hereunder shall constitute a breach of contract. In cases where
standards conflict, the standard providing the highest degree of protection shall prevail.

If a death, serious personal injury or substantial property damage occurs in connection with
the performance of this Agreement, Professional shall immediately notify City's risk manager by
telephone. If any accident occurs in connection with this Agreement, Professional shall promptly
submit a written report to City, in such form as City may require. This report shall include the
following information: (a) name and address of the injured or deceased person(s); (b) name and
address of Professional's subcontractor, if any; (¢) name and address of Professional's liability
insurance carrier; and (d) a detailed description of the accident, including whether any of City's
equipment, tools or materials were involved.

If a release of a hazardous material, substance, or waste occurs in connection with the

performance of this Agreement, Professional shall immediately notify City. Professional shall not
store hazardous materials or hazardous waste within City limits without a proper permit from City.

CITY CONTRACT NO. 2022-58 5



13. Contact by Professional with Project Owner or Project Applicant. Unless otherwise
set forth in the Services, neither Professional nor Professional's subcontractors shall directly
contact the owner of the property involved in the Project or any party who is the applicant for the
Project (“Interested Party”), or an employee or contractor of an Interested Party, on any matter
relating to the Project without the prior consent of the Contractor Administrator. In no event shall
Professional take any instructions or directions from an Interested Party on any matter pertaining
to the Professional's Services to be performed for City under this Agreement.

14. Confidentiality. Professional understands and agrees that, in the performance of Services
under this Agreement or in the contemplation thereof, Professional may have access to private or
confidential information that may be owned or controlled by City and that such information may
contain proprietary or confidential details, the disclosure of which to third parties may be damaging
to City (“Confidential Information”).

Professional shall not, either during or after the Term, disclose to any third party any
Confidential Information without the prior written consent of City. If City gives Professional
written authorization to make any such disclosure, Professional shall do so only within the limits
and to the extent of that authorization. Professional may be directed or advised by the City
Attorney on various matters relating to the performance of the Services on the Project or on other
matters pertaining to the Project and, in such event, Professional agrees that it will treat all
communications between itself, its employees and its subcontractors as being communications
which are within the attorney-client privilege.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Professional may disclose Confidential Information
required to be disclosed under law, provided that, prior to disclosure, Professional shall first give
notice to City and make a reasonable effort to obtain a protective order requiring that City’s
Confidential Information not be disclosed. This exception is limited to the extent disclosure is
required under law.

15.  Excusable Delays; Notice to Other Party of Delay. Professional shall not be in breach of
this Agreement in the event that performance of Services is temporarily interrupted or discontinued
due to a “Force Majeure” event which is defined as: riots, wars, sabotage, civil disturbances,
insurrections, explosion, natural disasters such as floods, earthquakes, landslides, fires, strikes,
lockouts and other labor disturbances or other catastrophic events, which are beyond the
reasonable control of Professional. Force Majeure does not include: (a) Professional’s financial
inability to perform; (b) Professional’s failure to obtain any necessary permits or licenses from
other governmental agencies; or (¢) Professional’s failure to obtain the right to use the facilities of
any public utility where such failure is due solely to the acts or omissions of the Professional.

16.  Assignment Prohibited. No Party to this Agreement may assign any right or obligation
pursuant to this Agreement. Any attempt or purported assignment of any right or obligation
pursuant to this Agreement shall be void and of no effect.

17.  Suspension of Services by City. City reserves the right to suspend Professional's Services

under this Agreement when City determines that it is necessary to do so. When possible, City shall
give Professional notice of such suspension and Professional shall, upon receipt of said notice,

CITY CONTRACT NO. 2022-58 6



suspend all Services except any Services, the completion of which is authorized by the notice given
by City. If the Services are suspended by City for more than sixty (60) consecutive days, for
reasons other than the fault of the Professional, the Professional shall be compensated for Services
performed prior to notice of such suspension. When the Project is resumed, the Professional's
compensation shall be equitably adjusted by City to provide for expenses incurred by the
interruption of the Services. In this regard, Professional shall furnish to City such financial
information that, in the judgment of the City Manager, is necessary to determine the reasonable
value of the Services rendered by Professional during the period when Services were suspended.

If the Parties are unable to agree upon the amount of extra compensation which is due to
Professional within thirty (30) days of Professional resuming Services, the amount of such
additional compensation, if any, that is required to appropriately compensate the Professional for
its expenses incurred by the interruption of Services may, upon the request of either Party, be
determined by arbitration conducted in accordance with the “Arbitration of Disputes” section of
this Agreement. Such arbitration shall be commenced by the Professional no later than sixty (60)
calendar days following the event which entitles the Parties to pursue arbitration unless the
Parties agree in writing to an extended time period for commencement of arbitration. Unless
otherwise agreed in writing, all Parties shall carry on the Services and perform their duties during
any arbitration proceedings, and City shall continue to make payments for the Services in
progress as required by this Agreement.

18. Ownership of Work Product. Any and all work, artwork, copy, posters, billboards,
photographs, videotapes, audiotapes, systems designs, software, reports, designs, specifications,
drawings, diagrams, surveys, source codes, professional or technical information or data,
photographs, notes, letters, emails or any original works of authorship created by Professional or
its subcontractors or subcontractors in connection with Services performed under this Agreement
(“Products”) shall be works for hire as defined under Title 17 of the United States Code, and all
copyrights in such works are the property of City. In the event it is ever determined that any
Product created by Professional or its subcontractors, or subcontractors under this Agreement, are
not works for hire under U.S. law, Professional hereby assigns all copyrights to such Products to
City. With the prior written approval of City's point of contact for the Project, Professional may
retain and use copies of such Products for reference and as documentation of its experience and
capabilities.

All Products shall become the property of City irrespective of where located or stored, and
Professional agrees to deliver all such documents and information to City, without charge and in
whatever form it exists, on the completion of the Professional's Services hereunder. Professional
shall have no ownership interest in such Products.

All work product of Professional under this Agreement, including written information which
City will cause to be distributed for either internal or public circulation, including both preliminary
and final drafts, shall be delivered to City in both printed and electronic form, or as may be
specified in Exhibit A.

When this Agreement is terminated, Professional agrees to return to City all documents,
drawings, photographs and other written or graphic material, however produced, that it received

CITY CONTRACT NO. 2022-58 7



from City, its contractors or agents, in connection with the performance of its Services under this
Agreement. All materials shall be returned in the same condition as received.

19.  Termination of Work by City for Its Convenience. City shall have the right to terminate
this Agreement at any time for its convenience by giving notice of such termination to Professional.
In the event City shall give such notice of termination, Professional shall cease rendering Services
upon receipt of said notice given as required in this Agreement. If City terminates this Agreement:

(a) Professional shall deliver copies of all Products prepared by it pursuant to this
Agreement.

(b) If City terminates this Agreement for convenience before City issues the Notice to
Proceed to Professional or before Professional commences any Services hereunder, whichever last
occurs, City shall not be obligated to make any payment to Professional. If City terminates this
Agreement after City has issued the Notice to Proceed to Professional and after Professional has
commenced performance under this Agreement, City shall pay Professional the reasonable value
of the Services rendered by Professional pursuant to this Agreement prior to termination of this
Agreement. City shall not in any manner be liable for Professional's actual or projected lost profits
had Professional completed the Services. Professional shall furnish to City such financial
information that, in the judgment of the City Manager, is necessary to determine the reasonable
value of the Services rendered by Professional prior to termination. In the event of a dispute as to
the reasonable value of the Services rendered by Professional prior to termination and the Parties
are unable to agree upon said amount within sixty (60) calendar days following the date of the
notice of termination by City, such dispute may, upon the request of either Party, be resolved by
arbitration conducted in accordance with the “Arbitration of Disputes” section of this Agreement.

(©) Except as provided in this Agreement, in no event shall City be liable for costs
incurred by or on behalf of Professional after the date of the notice of termination.

20.  Assurance of Performance. If, at any time, City believes Professional may not be
adequately performing its obligations under this Agreement or may fail to complete the Services
as required by this Agreement, City may submit a written request to Professional for written
assurances of performance and a plan to correct observed deficiencies in Professional's
performance. Failure to provide written assurances subsequent to such written request, constitutes
grounds to declare a breach under this Agreement.

21. Cancellation for Breach by Either Party. Should either Party fail to substantially perform
its obligations in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, the other Party shall thereupon
have the right to cancel the Agreement by giving written notice and specifying the effective date
of such cancellation. If City cancels this Agreement for breach and it is subsequently determined
that Professional did not fail to substantially perform its obligations in accordance with this
Agreement, then cancellation for breach by City shall be deemed, and treated, as termination for
convenience.

Neither Party waives the right to recover damages against the other for breach of this
Agreement, including any amount necessary to compensate City for all detriment proximately

CITY CONTRACT NO. 2022-58 8



caused by Professional's failure to perform its obligations hereunder or which in the ordinary
course of things would be likely to result therefrom. City reserves the right to offset such
damages against any payments owed to Professional.

City shall not in any manner be liable for Professional's actual or projected lost profits
had Professional completed the Services required by this Agreement.

22.  Non-Discrimination. In its performance of the Services, Professional shall adhere to
City’s EEO Policy which states, “The City is committed to ensuring that all qualified individuals
have a full and fair opportunity to compete in all phase of the hiring process and promotion, and
to enjoy the benefits of employment with the City. All employees and applicants shall receive
equal consideration and treatment in employment without regard to race, color, religion, gender,
sexual orientation, national origin, age, disability, genetic information, marital status, amnesty, or
status as a covered veteran in accordance with applicable federal or state statutes, the City’s
ordinances, resolutions, rules or regulations.”

In addition, all agreements with sub-contractors will include language as required by the
Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP) that requires sub-contractors to
maintain equal employment opportunity policies, and, as necessary, affirmative action policies.

23. Arbitration of Disputes. All claims, disputes, and other matters in question between City
and Professional arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the breach thereof, including claims
of Professional for extra compensation for Services related to the Project, shall be decided by
arbitration before a single arbitrator in accordance with the provisions of Sections 1281 to 1284.2
of the California Code of Civil Procedure (the “Arbitration Laws”) unless the Parties mutually
agree otherwise. The provisions of Section 1283.05 of the Arbitration Laws apply to any
arbitration proceeding except as otherwise provided in this Agreement. The arbitrator shall have
authority to decide all issues between the Parties including, but not limited to, claims for extras,
delay and liquidated damages, if any, provided for in this Agreement, matters involving defects in
the work product of the Professional, rights to payment, and whether the necessary procedures for
arbitration have been followed. The award rendered by the arbitrator shall be final, and judgment
may be entered upon it in accordance with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

Notice of the demand for arbitration shall be filed in writing with the other Party. The
demand for arbitration shall be made within a reasonable time after the claim, dispute, or other
matter in question has arisen, and in no event shall it be made after the date when institution of
legal or equitable proceedings based on such claim, dispute, or other matter in question would be
barred by the applicable statute of limitation.

The Parties shall jointly appoint an arbitrator within fifteen (15) calendar days of the date
of giving of the notice of the demand for arbitration. If the Parties are unable to jointly agree
upon the appointment of an arbitrator within said fifteen (15) calendar day period, and do not
agree in writing to extend said period for a fixed period, then either Party may seek to have the
arbitrator appointed by the Superior Court of Stanislaus County in accordance with the
Arbitration Laws.

CITY CONTRACT NO. 2022-58 9



If any proceeding is brought to contest the right to arbitrate and it is determined that such
right exists, the losing Party shall pay all costs and attorneys' fees incurred by the prevailing

party.

In addition to the other rules of law which may be applicable to any arbitration hereunder,
the following shall apply:

(a) Promptly upon the filing of the arbitration, each Party shall be required to
set forth in writing and to serve upon each other Party a detailed statement of its contentions of
fact and law.

(b)  All parties to the arbitration shall be entitled to the discovery procedures as
provided in Section 1283.05 of the California Code of Civil Procedure.

(©) The arbitration shall be commenced and conducted as expeditiously as
possible consistent with affording reasonable discovery as provided herein.

(d) These additional rules shall be implemented and applied by the arbitrator.

The costs of arbitration shall be borne by the Parties as determined by the arbitrator, but
each Party shall bear its own attorney's fees associated with the dispute with the other Party and
to the arbitration.

24.  Insurance Coverage. During the Term, the Professional shall maintain in full force and
effect policies of insurance set forth herein, which shall be placed with insurers with a current A
M Best’s rating of no less than A VII and will provide City with written proof of said insurance.
Professional shall maintain coverage as follows:

24.1 General Liability. Professional shall carry general liability insurance in the
amount of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal
injury, and property damage. If commercial general liability insurance or another form with
a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately
to this Project or the general aggregate shall be Four Million Dollars ($4,000,000).

24.2 Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability. Professional
shall carry workers’ compensation insurance as required by the State of California under
the Labor Code. Professional shall also carry employer’s liability insurance in the amount
of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per accident, with a One Million Dollars ($1,000,000)
policy limit for bodily injury by disease, and a One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) limit for
each employee’s bodily injury by disease.

24.3 Errors and Omissions Liability. Professional shall carry errors and omissions
liability insurance in the amount of no less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) per
claim or greater if appropriate for the Professional's profession. Any deductibles or self-
insured retentions must be declared to and approved by City. At the option of City, either
the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect

CITY CONTRACT NO. 2022-58 10



to City, its elected and appointed councils, commissions, directors, officers, employees,
agents, and representatives (“City’s Agents”); or the Professional shall provide a financial
guarantee satisfactory to City guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations,
claims administration and defense expenses.

244 Commercial Automobile Liability. Professional shall carry commercial
automobile liability insurance in the amount of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) or
greater per occurrence for owned, leased, hired, and borrowed automobiles.

24.5 Waiver of Subrogation. With the exception of errors and omissions liability
insurance, Professional hereby agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer of
Professional may acquire from Professional by virtue of the payment of any loss. The
commercial general liability policy and workers’ compensation policy shall be endorsed to
contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of City for all work performed by Professional, its
agents, employees, independent contractors, and subcontractors. Professional agrees to
obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation.

25.  Additional Insurance Requirements. Within five (5) days of the Effective Date,
Professional shall provide City with certificates of insurance for all of the policies required under
this Agreement (“Certificates”), excluding the required workers’ compensation insurance. Such
Certificates shall be kept current for the Term of the Agreement and Professional shall be
responsible for providing updated copies and notifying City if a policy is cancelled, suspended,
reduced, or voided. With the exception of the workers’ compensation insurance, all of the
insurance policies required in this Agreement shall: (a) provide that the policy will not be
cancelled, allowed to expire, or materially reduced in coverage without at least thirty (30) days’
prior written notice to City of such cancellation, expiration, or reduction and each policy shall be
endorsed to state such; (b) name City, and City’s Agents as additional insureds with respect to
liability arising out of Services, work or operations performed by or on behalf of Professional; (c)
cover products and completed operations of Professional, premises owned, occupied, or used by
the Professional, or automobiles owned, leased, or hired or borrowed by the Professional; contain
no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to City; (d) be primary with respect to
any insurance or self-insurance programs covering City or City’s Agents and any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by City or City’s Agents shall be in excess of Professional’s insurance and
shall not contribute to it; () contain standard separation of insured provisions; and (f) state that
any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policy including breaches of
warranties shall not affect the coverage provided to City.

26.  Indemnification by Professional. To the fullest extent permitted by law (including,
without limitation, California Civil Code sections 2782 and 2782.8), Professional shall defend with
legal counsel reasonably acceptable to City, indemnify and hold harmless City and City’s Agents
from and against any and all claims, loss, cost, damage, injury (including, without limitation, injury
to or death of an employee of Professional or its subcontractors), expense and liability of every
kind, nature and description that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to acts or omissions of
Professional, or any direct or indirect subcontractor, employee, contractor, representative or agent
of Professional, or anyone that Professional controls (collectively “Liabilities). Such obligations
to defend, hold harmless, and indemnify City and City’s Agents shall not apply to the extent that

CITY CONTRACT NO. 2022-58 11



such Liabilities are caused in whole by the sole negligence, active negligence, or willful
misconduct of City or City’s Agents, but shall apply to all other Liabilities. With respect to third
party claims against the Professional, the Professional waives any and all rights of any type of
express or implied indemnity against City and City’s Agents.

27.  Liability of City. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event shall
City be liable, regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or tort, for any special,
consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits or revenue,
arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or the Services performed in connection with
this Agreement.

28.  Independent Contractor. At all times during the Term, Professional shall be deemed to
be an independent contractor and shall be wholly responsible for the manner in which Professional
performs the Services required under this Agreement. Professional shall be liable for its acts and
omissions and those of its employees, contractors, subcontractors, representatives, volunteers, and
its agents. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as creating an employment, agency or
partnership relationship between City and Professional. City shall have the right to control
Professional only insofar as the result of Professional’s Services rendered pursuant to this
Agreement; however, City shall not have the right to control the means by which Professional
accomplishes Services rendered pursuant to this Agreement.

29.  Professional Not Agent. Except as City may specify in writing, Professional shall have no
authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of City in any capacity whatsoever as an agent.
Professional shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind City
to any obligation whatsoever.

30. Payment of Taxes and Other Expenses. Payment of any taxes, including California sales
and use taxes, levied upon this Agreement, the transaction, or the Services or goods delivered
pursuant hereto, shall be the obligation of Professional.

31. Notices. All notices shall be in writing and delivered in person or transmitted by certified
mail, postage prepaid. Any Party hereto may at any time, by giving ten (10) days’ written notice
to the other Party hereto, designate any other address in substitution of the address to which such
notice or communication shall be given. Such notices or communications shall be given to the
Parties at their addresses set forth below.

If to City: City of Turlock
Attn: City Engineer
156 S. Broadway, Suite 150
Turlock, CA 95380-5461

With courtesy copies to: Petrulakis Law & Advocacy, APC
Attn: George A. Petrulakis, City Attorney
P.O. Box 92
Modesto, California 95380

CITY CONTRACT NO. 2022-58 12



If to Professional:

Attn:

32. City Contract Administrator. City’s contract administrator and contact person for
this Agreement is:

Randall Jones

Associate Engineer

156 S. Broadway, Suite 150
Turlock, California 95380-5456
Telephone: (209) 668-6021
E-mail: Rjones@turlock.ca.us

33. Interpretation. As used herein, any gender includes each other gender, the singular
includes the plural and vice versa.

34. Modification. No alteration, amendment, modification, or termination of this Agreement
shall be valid unless made in writing and executed by all of the Parties to this Agreement.

35. Waiver. No covenant, term, or condition or the breach thereof shall be deemed waived,
except by written consent of the Party against whom the waiver is claimed, and any waiver of the
breach of any covenant, term, or condition shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any preceding or
succeeding breach of the same or any other covenant, term, or condition.

36.  Assignment. No Party to this Agreement shall assign, transfer, or otherwise dispose of this
Agreement, in whole or in part, to any individual, firm, or corporation without the prior written
consent of the other Party. Subject to the forgoing provisions, this Agreement shall be binding
upon, and inure to the benefit of, the respective successors and assigns of the Parties hereto.

37. Authority. All Parties to this Agreement warrant and represent that they have the power
and authority to enter into this Agreement and the names, titles, and capacities herein stated on
behalf of any entities, persons, states, or firms represented or purported to be represented by such
entities, persons, states or firms and that all former requirements necessary or required by state or
federal law in order to enter into the Agreement have been fully complied with. Further, by entering
into this Agreement, neither Party hereto shall have breached the terms or conditions of any other
contract or agreement to which such Party is obligated, which such breach would have a material
effect hereon.

38.  Drafting and Ambiguities. Each Party acknowledges that it has reviewed this Agreement
with its own legal counsel, and based upon the advice of that counsel, freely entered into this
Agreement. Each Party has participated fully in the review and revision of this Agreement. Any
rule of construction that ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting Party does not apply in
interpreting this Agreement.

CITY CONTRACT NO. 2022-58 13



39. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of the state of California.

40.  Venue. Venue for all legal proceedings shall be in the Superior Court of the State of
California, in and for the County of Stanislaus.

41. Severability. If this Agreement in its entirety is determined by a court to be invalid or
unenforceable, this Agreement shall automatically terminate as of the date of final entry of
judgment. If any provision of this Agreement shall be determined by a court to be invalid and
unenforceable, or if any provision of this Agreement is rendered invalid or unenforceable
according to the terms of any federal or state statute, which becomes effective after the Effective
Date of this Agreement, the remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect and shall
be construed to give effect to the intent of this Agreement.

42. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously, and in several
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but which together shall constitute one
and the same instrument.

43. Audit. City shall have access at all reasonable times to all reports, contract records, contract
documents, contract files, and personnel necessary to audit and verify Professional’s charges to
City under this Agreement.

44, Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with its specific references, attachments, and
exhibits, constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to the subject matters hereof
and supersedes any and all prior negotiations, understanding, and agreements with respect hereto,
whether oral or written.

45. Supersedes Prior Agreement. It is the intention of the Parties hereto that this Agreement
shall supersede any prior agreements, discussions, commitments, or representations, whether
written, electronic or oral, between the Parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.

46. Mandatory and Permissive. “Shall” and “will” and “agrees” are mandatory. “May” and
“can” are permissive.

47. Successors and Assigns. All representations, covenants, and warranties specifically set
forth in this Agreement, by or on behalf of, or for the benefit of, any or all of the Parties hereto,
shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of such Party, its successors and assigns.

48. Headings. Headings used in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not
be considered in construing this Agreement.

49.  Attorney’s Fees and Costs. If any action at law or in equity not resolved pursuant to the
“Arbitration of Disputes” section of this Agreement, including action for declaratory relief, is
brought to enforce or interpret provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be entitled
to reasonable attorney's fees and costs, which may be set by the court in the same action or in a

CITY CONTRACT NO. 2022-58 14



separate action brought for that purpose, in addition to any other relief to which such Party may
be entitled.

50.  Necessary Acts and Further Assurances. The Parties shall at their own cost and expense
execute and deliver such further documents and instruments and shall take such other actions as
may be reasonably required or appropriate to evidence or carry out the intent and purposes of this
Agreement.

51. Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence in this Agreement for each covenant and
term of a condition herein.

[Signatures on Following Page]

CITY CONTRACT NO. 2022-58 15



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by
and through their respective officers thereunto duly authorized.

PROFESSIONAL

GHD, Inc., a
private corporation

By:

Print Name:

Title:

Date

CITY CONTRACT NO. 2022-58

16

CITY

City of Turlock, a California
municipal corporation

By:

Sarah Tamey Eddy, Interim City Manager

Date:

APPROVED AS TO SUFFICIENCY:

By:

Katie Quintero, Deputy Director of
Development Services / Planning Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:
George A. Petrulakis, City Attorney

ATTEST:

By:
Kellie E. Weaver, Interim City Clerk




SERVICE REQUEST NO. __ -

CONSULTANT:

PROJECT:

THIS SERVICE REQUEST dated , is an addendum to the Agreement for
Traffic Engineering Services (“Agreement”) dated January 25, 2022, between the City of Turlock
(“City”) and (“Consultant*).

WHEREAS, upon execution, this Service Request shall be considered a part of the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, this Service Request establishes the Scope of Work and compensation amounts for specific
engineering and surveying services and authorizes Consultant to proceed with the project.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties mutually agree as follows:

SCOPE OF WORK

1. City agrees to compensate Consultant for the required work in accordance with the terms of payment
stipulated in the Agreement and this addendum. An itemized list of tasks and a detailed cost for the
completion of the required work is attached hereto as Exhibit A to this Service Request No.
The cost for completion of the items of work shall not exceed and no/100%™s
Dollars ($ ).

2. Except as herein modified, all terms and conditions in the Agreement remain unchanged and are in
full force and effect.

CITY OF TURLOCK, a municipal corporation

By: By:

City Engineer
Title:

Date:

Address:

Phone:

SERVICE REQUEST



EXHIBIT A

Z

Proposal for

On Call Retainer for Traffic Engineering Services
Project No. 21-030

City of Turlock

October 22, 2021 - The Power of Commitment




Contents

Cover Letter
1. General Information, Background, & Experience 1
A. General Information 1

Firm Information / Authorized Contact Person
Financial Standing
B. Firm Background / Services & History 2
Available Services
C. Demonstrated Technical Capabilities 3
Public Agencies
Similar Project Experience
Familiarity Working with the City
Innovative or Advanced Techniques

2. Performance History & References 20
3. Staff Qualifications & Responsiveness 25

4. Fee Proposal

Separate sealed envelope

Appendices
A. Resumes
B. Service Agreement - Exceptions

© GHD 2021

This document is and shall remain the property of GHD. The document may only be used for the purpose for
which it was commissioned and in accordance with the Terms of Engagement for the commission. Unauthorized
use of this document in any form whatsoever is prohibited.

- The Power of Commitment



669 Pacific Street, Suite A

San Luis Obispo, CA 93401

United States

www.ghd.com

October 22, 2021

Randall Jones, Associate Engineer

City of Turlock, Development Services Department

156 South Broadway, Suite 150
Turlock, CA 95380

RE: Proposal for On Call Retainer for Traffic Engineering Services - City Project No. 21-030
Dear Mr. Jones,

GHD has assisted the City with its Traffic Engineering needs for many years. Over that time, we have helped the City
successfully navigate challenging planning, engineering and design efforts, from small impact studies to Citywide plans.
We are excited for this opportunity to continue offering our full range of Traffic Engineering Services on an on call basis,
including:

Third Party Peer Review of Traffic Engineering Work - Active Transportation Planning and Design
Traffic Engineering Studies and Analysis - Traffic Operations and Simulation Analysis
Traffic Calming and Safety Studies - Traffic Signal Design, Signal Timing and Signal
Traffic Engineering Reports and Presentations to Synchronization

Community, Boards and City Council - Traffic Impact Analysis and Fee Studies
Preparation of Conceptual Designs, Plans and - Trip Generation Studies and VMT Analysis

Specifications

Intersection Control Evaluation (ICE)

Our business model is centered on our ability to provide “a designers insight” to transportation planning and traffic
engineering projects - a dynamic insight, which we pride ourselves in and which we believe separates us from our
competition. Our planning and traffic engineering team is able to draw from the experience of our design engineers,
surveyors, landscape architects, and construction managers. This provides a quick-response "peer review" process
between in-house disciplines and ensures projects we proposed pass the test of "real world" feasibility.

This "model" has been successful as shown by the fact that over 85% of our business is repeat business. In Turlock, for
example, we have worked on over 40 projects since 1995. Other examples include:

Arroyo Grande (35 projects) - Rocklin (43 projects)

Dublin (63 projects) - Monterey County (15 projects)

Galt (48 projects)

With 20 years of experience in Turlock, you can trust us to understand the context of your local issues and to be
responsive, timely, and fiscally responsible. We are committed to finding cost effective solutions that work for your City
and we look forward to continuing our longstanding successful partnership. If you have any questions, please do not
hesitate to contact me.

Regards

Kam\sb/Vedula PE TE JawWalter, PE, TE
Principal-in-Charge Project Manager
916.918.0622 805.858.3141
kamesh.vedula@ghd.com jay.walter@ghd.com

= The Power of Commitment



1. General
Information,
Background, &
Experience

= The Power of Commitment

aousiadx3 3 ‘punoidioeg

‘uojjewio U] [essusy) F



= 1. General
Information,
Background, &
Experience

GHD provides transportation
planning and engineering,
environmental, advisory, digital,
and construction services to
private and public sector clients.
Operating globally and delivering
services locally, we offer clients
the ability to develop a working
relationship with our local staff while having access
to our global experience base. Put simply, we work
where our clients work. Our business model is to work
internationally and deliver locally.

A. General Information

Our team offers decades of knowledge in
transportation engineering and brings a deep
understanding of the City of Turlock's needs, having
worked on past projects. As shown throughout this
proposal, our team brings:

Familiarity and understanding of local issues
Proven experience in navigating through complex
planning, engineering, and design

A history of working with the City

Qualified personnel with relevant and recent
experience to manage various project scopes
Extensive experience with On Call Contracts for
local agencies

We are a team you know and can trust. Our proposed
Project Manager is Jay Walter, PE, TE, with Kamesh
Vedula, PE, TE as the Principal-in-Charge. Our team is
based out of our San Luis Obispo and Roseville offices,
and readily accessible to respond to the City's needs.

Firm Information
669 Pacific Street, Suite A

San Luis Obispo, CA 93401
T. 805.242.0461
www.ghd.com

90+ years in operation
135+ countries served
200+ offices worldwide
$2.3® revenue 2020

5 global markets

10® people

50+ service lines

I—)' Providing engineering, environmental,
advisory, architecture, digital and
construction services

Authorized Personnel
Kamesh Vedula, PE, TE, Principal-in-Charge

916.918.0622
kamesh.vedula@ghd.com

Overall Project Contact
Jay Walter, PE, TE, Project Manager

805.858.3141
jay.walter@ghd.com

Financial Standing
GHD is an employee-owned company that has been

in continual operation since its founding in 1928 and
has enjoyed 92 years of profitability. With a strong
balance sheet that is well-funded, and with net assets
exceeding $59 million USD, GHD maintains favorable
funding arrangements with its bank HSBC. Global
revenues exceed $1 billion USD annually and with low
levels of intangible assets and conservative gearing,
GHD has a firm platform for further growth.

Our USA West Region is comprised of 400+ FTE
professionals located in offices throughout the West
Coast and US Micronesia with annual revenues of
$80 million.

GHD | City of Turlock | On Call Retainer Services for Traffic Engineering Services | 1



B. Firm Background / Services & History

Established in 1928, GHD is a wholly-owned subsidiary - a privately held international engineering firm

owned by our people and operating across five continents. We are one of the world's leading professional
services companies for Transportation Engineering. Our people can offer decades of knowledge and a deep
understanding of the challenges facing businesses and communities today. Moreover, our team has a 20-year
history with the City of Turlock, which provides a unique understanding of the City's needs and understanding

of local issues. Our technical capabilities are shown on past projects such as the initial alignment study for the
Christoffersen Parkway to modifications of interchanges on State Highway 99; delivering various transportation
services to the City such as traffic impact analysis, signal design, and signal coordination studies to assist with the
General Plan Circulation Element Update and Impact Fee work. In addition, our relationship with other agencies
such as Caltrans and the County of Stanislaus helps to facilitate project coordination and completion.

Our firm's experience in delivering similar projects, including those for public agencies is found in the next section.

Available Services

GHD has an excellent performance record with
municipal and government agencies throughout
California. Many of GHD’s past and current projects
include the following transportation services:

— Third Party Peer Review of Traffic Engineering Work
— Traffic Engineering Studies and Analysis
— Traffic Calming and Safety Studies

— Traffic Engineering Reports and Presentations to
Community, Boards and City Council

— Preparation of Conceptual Designs, Plans and
Specifications

— Intersection Control Evaluation (ICE)
— Active Transportation Planning and Design
— Traffic Operations and Simulation Analysis

— Public Outreach & Interagency Coordination

— Traffic Signal Design, Signal Timing and Signal
Synchronization

— Traffic Impact Analysis and Fee Studies

— Trip Generation Studies and VMT Analysis
Other Optional (As-Needed Services)

— Motorized and Non-Motorized Transportation
— Complete Streets / Streetscape Design

— Civil Engineering

— Landscape Architecture / Wayfinding

— Roundabout Planning / Design

— Construction Management

— Grant / Application Writing and Preparation

Local Firm ink =

Ranked #26
o1’ 2020 ENR e
Topls00p & |=—— Servingthe

Design Firms . < Northerng
4 ..ji ¥ Ccaliforia

i

Qver 70 Years

ommuMnity for |

Transportation
== ~.Services

o
Federal f

State Fuﬁﬁ
Projectsiil
the Last ,1

ISO
9001:2015



C. Demonstrated Technical
Capabilities

Public Agency Experience

Our firm's experience in delivering similar projects,
including those for public agencies, is found in this
section. GHD has worked with multiple agencies and
stakeholders, providing transportation engineering
services in various disciplines for over 50 clients
throughout California.

Familiarity Working With the City

Turlock Transportation Planning /
Engineering Services

Since 1995, GHD has been providing continuous
transportation planning and traffic engineering
services to the City. Partly on Retainer Contract and
partly through the competitive selection process,
GHD has updated their Circulation Element and

TIF program, assisted in their area master planning,
modified three SR 99 interchanges, prepared
countless Traffic Impact Analyses, and most recent
most recently the Citywide Engineering and Traffic
Survey Update. For over 19 years, GHD continues to
meet the transportation needs of the growing Turlock
community.

Similar Experience Project Experience

Please refer to pages seven and beyond in this
section for a summary of similar project experience
working on multi-disciplined transportation projects.

Traffic Engineering Services

Traffic engineering consists of many separate
disciplines, from traffic operations to parking
analysis. These disciplines form the core of larger
planning or design projects. We know that the “devil
is in the details”, and traffic engineering is all about
details. Every project we undertake requires some
level of traffic engineering expertise, whether a
large-scale circulation study, or a site access issue.
Understanding the complex world of traffic flow and
capacity limits is our specialty.

Transportation Planning and Modeling

Transportation Planning typically addresses a

combination of short-term and long-term circulation,

access, and mobility concerns. Our transportation

planning work consists of a wide variety of studies, for
example, developing a feasibility study, neighborhood
traffic calming plan, ADA transportation planning and
implementation, safe routes to school plan, school
audits and recommendations, circulation elements,
ATPs, grant applications, and development of impact
fee programs. GHD utilizes quality control and
effective communication at every level of effort. In
past on call arrangements, GHD has completed a wide
variety of transportation planning efforts, ranging
from city-wide plans to local neighborhood studies,
and every scale in between.

Comprehensive citywide planning efforts that GHD
has completed during past On Call contracts include
preparing Transportation Master Plans, Circulation
Element Updates, Traffic Impact Analysis Guidelines,
Development Impact Fee Updates, Travel Demand
Model Updates, ATPs, Bicycle and Pedestrian Master
Plans, Safety Analyses, and Capital Improvement
Program Updates. Neighborhood and community-
level planning efforts that GHD has completed
during past On Call contracts include preparing
Multimodal Corridor Studies, Complete Streets Plans,
Traffic Calming Studies, Local Safety Studies, and
Safe Routes to School (SRTS) Studies. GHD is also
regularly asked to prepare traffic impact analyses

for proposed infrastructure projects or land use
plans. GHD has extensive experience identifying

and developing funding and implementation plans
for future transportation improvement needs. We
understand the performance metrics utilized in
statewide and federal grant programs and have
demonstrated our ability to secure competitive grant
money for equitable local transportation projects.

Innovative or Advanced Techniques

GHD utilizes the latest in technologies in in data
analytics and Al, system reliability and resiliency,
defensible implementation plan, and is uniquely
located to act as a binder between transit agencies,
various vendors, policymakers, and suppliers.

We use ArcGIS software to house multiple forms

of data from a speed survey, collision analysis, or
other data intensive tasks. ArcGIS allows us to create
user specifc shapefiles that are deliverable to the
client. In addtion, we can create spatially rich maps in
visualizing the data in different ways.

GHD | City of Turlock | On Call Retainer Services for Traffic Engineering Services | 3



Similar Experience

GHD has provided on call services in support of
Transportation projects to more than 50 clients, in
Californiaincluding the following Cities:

City of Alturas
City of American Canyon
City of Arroyo Grande
City of Anderson
City of Avenal
City of Ceres
City of Cotati
City of Concord
City of Clearlake
City of Dublin
City of Fresno
City of Galt

City of Lathrop
City of Los Banos
City of Monterey
City of Newark
City of Napa

City of Sonoma
City of Porterville
City of Rocklin
City of Red Bluff
City of Redding

On Call Projects

City of Ripon

City of Sacramento
City of San Luis Opisbo
City of Santa Barbara
City of Shasta Lake
City of Tulare

City of Turlock

City of Williams

City of Healdsburg
City of Petaluma
City of Rio Dell

City of Rohnert Park
City of Santa Rosa
City of Sebastopol
City of St. Helena
City of Vacaville

City of Ukiah

County of Marin

County of Sonoma

Napa Valley Transportation

Authority

Town of Windsor

Our team has also served numerous other
municipal agencies and counties such as:

Fresno
Calaveras
Modoc

San Luis Obispo

Tehama

Other

Sierra Joint College Com-
munity District (Informal)

UC Davis Medical Center
Exeter Union School
District

CSU Fresno

Cotati Traffic Engineering Services

Trinity
Tulare RMA

Tulare County Office of
Education

Monterey

Waste Connections, Inc.

Tulare RMA

Tulare County Office of
Education

GHD was initially awarded this On Call Contractin May 2010. Work completed
since then for the City includes an alternatives analysis for the Cotati Downtown
Specific Plan, a parking and circulation review for the Peet’s Coffee located at Old
Redwood Highway/Gravenstein Way, and the completion of various speed surveys.
GHD held numerous well-attended public workshops as part of the Old Redwood
Highway Improvement Project alternatives analysis for the Downtown Specific Plan.
The study considered widening the roadway, signalization, a road diet, multimodal
enhancements, and roundabouts along a corridor at the heart of Cotati.

Arroyo Grande Transportation Services

GHD has been providing transportation planning and engineering services since
1989. Over that time, we have created a Citywide Traffic Model in 1989 using Minutp
software and anew model in 2006 using TransCAD software. Additionally, we have
been preparing TIA and other special studies as requested. The current On Call
contract dates back to 2007. GHD conducts peer reviews on behalf of the City for
studies prepared by other transportation consultants. We have recently completed
an updated Circulation Element, Systemic Safety Analysis Report, and Local Road

Safety Plan.

GHD

City of Turlock | On Call Retainer Services for Traffic Engineering Services

4




	1.25.22 Agenda.pdf (p.1-7)
	6A.pdf (p.8-18)
	6A Regular Minutes 011122.pdf (p.1-10)
	6A Special Meeting Minutes 011322.pdf (p.11)

	6B.pdf (p.19-39)
	6B 15-39C TRWQCF Secondary Clarifier No 5, CCO No. 7 (Final), Reso, and NOC - Staff Report.D1.pdf (p.1-7)
	6B 15-39C TRWQCF Secondary Clarifier No 5 - Final funds Reso.D2.pdf (p.8)
	6B 15-39C TRWQCF Secondary Clarifier No 5 CCO No. 7 (Final).D3.pdf (p.9)
	6B 15-39C TRWQCF Secondary Clarifier No 5 Final Quantities.D4.pdf (p.10-20)
	6B 15-39C NOC.D5.pdf (p.21)

	6C.pdf (p.40-43)
	6C 20-027 City Wide Chlorination CCO No. 2 - Staff Report.D1.pdf (p.1-3)
	6C 20-027 City Wide Chlorination CCO No. 2.D2.pdf (p.4)


